








Detailed information on the CSR policy, its salient features and CSR initiatives taken during Fy21
and composition of the Committee as per Rule 9 of Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is applicable to the Company in accordance with Section 135 of Companies
Act, 2013 and was applicable rules during the FY 20-21 is enclose herewith as Annexure 1.

The CSR policy of the Company has been hosted on the website of the Company and can be
accessed a

As per Section 135 of the Act, the Company was required to spend an amount of INR 10,94,434/-
equivalent to 2% of the ‘average net profits’ of the last three (3) financial years. During the FY
2020-21, your Company has spent an amount of INR. 8,11,051/- on CSR activities as against
prescribed CSR expenditure of INR 10,94,434. The unspent amount of INR 2,83,384/- will be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIi of the Act in accordance with the provisions
specified therein. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as “Annexure-1”.

The Board of Directors met 8 times during FY 20-21 on the following dates:

a. 28-04-2020, 22-05-2020, 15-08-2020, 18-09-2020, 19-09-2020, 07-11-2020, 12-11-2020 &
27-02-2021.

a. Appointment of Mr. Kartik Srivatsa as Nominee Director

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and pursuance to the
equity infusion by the Lightstone Fund S.A. {acting for and on behalf of Lightstone Global Fund),
the investor Company, there was a requirement to consider and recommend the appointment of
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa (acting as a representative of Lightstone Fund 5.A.) as a Nominee Director on
the Board of the Company. Mr. Kartik Srivatsa is the Managing Partner of LGT Lightstone Aspada.
Pursuant to the provisions of Sharehoider's Agreement dated 13th March 2020, the Board
considered and approved to appoint Mr. Kartik Srivatsa as Director (non-executive) of the
Company. His Director Identification Number is 03559152. The said appointment was further
approved at the Annual General meeting of the Company duly held on 30" May 2020.

Prior, he was with Lightspeed Venture Partners, a global venture capital firm with over $2 billion
under management, where he was a founding member of the India office. Earlier, Kartik was a
management consultant with McKinsey and Company. Kartik received a BTech in Mechanical
Engineering and MTech in Energy Technology both from the Indian Institute of Technology (IIT),
Madras.

Kartik currently serves on the Boards of Capital Float, Waycool, SV Agri, Lithium, Aye Finance and
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b. Resignation of Mr. Sridhar Srinivasan

Mr. Sridhar Srinivasan was appointed as a Non-executive Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 12" January 2019. He resigned from the Company with effect
from 28 August 2020 due to personal reasons. In furtherance to this, he ceased to be a
member of the Board of the Company as an Independent Director and effectively, from
the following Committees of the Board:

Audit Committee

Risk Committee

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
IT Strategy Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

®ap oo

Mr. Sridhar will continue to be associated with CredAvenue Private Limited, a Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of the Company as an advisory Board member.

The Independent Directors of the Company Mr. Sridhar Srinivasan and Ms. Namrata Kaul, have
given the necessary declaration under Section 149, Section 164 and Section 184 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the FY20-21. These declarations have been placed before the Board and is duly
taken on record.

A formal annual evaluation of the Board of the Company was carried out by Ms. Namrata Kaul,
the Independent Director, during the FY21. The evaluation was broadly carried out around
effectiveness of Board and functioning, meetings and procedures, business strategy and risk
management, Board communication and Committees. The feedback provided by the
Independent Directors will be discussed in detail in the upcoming meeting of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and will be noted followed by the Board of Directors in its meeting.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(a) The applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation

relating to material departures in the preparation of the annual accounts;

{b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of

the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of

the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and PreR-1y
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{e} The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(f} they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism by adoption of a Whistle Biower Policy, in
accordance with provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, allowing a platform for
the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances in relation to any unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The reporting
mechanism is incorporated in d->=*" *= *& - 1Aikistls Plocne Raliag A db~ Poeeeony which s also
available on Company’s website

During the year under review no complaints were received by the Company.

The company has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in line
with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace {Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. The Board has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
{ICC) to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The policy not only extends to
its employees but anyone who works in any of the Vivriti including all contractual staff, temporary
staff and trainees.

Employees and contractual staff undergo training and regular refresher training to ensure we
foster a positive workplace free from harassment of any nature.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the
year:

Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
Number of complaints received during the year

Number of complaints disposed off during the year
Number of cases pending at the end of the year

Qo0 a9

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, having Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai, was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion
of the Company’s first AGM held on 30" April 2018 and to hold office up to the conclusion of the
Sixth AGM. However, pursuant to the circular issued by Reserve Bank of India {(“RBI”} Circular No.
RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No. DoS. CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, which
states that “Entities will have to appoint the Statutory Central Auditors {SCAs)/Statutory Auditors
(SAs) for a continuous period of three years, subject to the firms satisfying the eligibility norms
each year.” Under these circumstances, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells as they have completed
continuous period of three years, had communicated their ineligibility to continue as statutory
auditors of the Company in terms of the aforesaid RBI circular, for the year ending March 31,




2022, Accordingly, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells will be stepping down as statutory auditors of the
Company. This will result into casual vacancy of the auditors and shall be duly filled in accordance
with the Act.

No frauds in terms of the provisions of section 143{12) of the Act have been reported by Statutory
Auditors in their report for the year under review.

There are no qualifications in the Auditor’s report.

Cost Audit is not applicable as per Sec 148 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules.

The Board had appointed M/s BP & Associates, Company Secretaries, Chennai to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2020-21.

The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 is annexed to this report as Annexure Hl is self-
explanatory its contains observation, but no qualification, reservations, adverse remarks and
disclaimers.

The Company has appointed M/s PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited as Independent
Internal Auditor and they report to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Internal Auditor conducts comprehensive audits of core business processes, its
supporting functional areas and operations of the Company to examine the adequacy of and
compliance with policies, plans and statutory requirements. Any significant observations from the
audit are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on guarterly basis. Required follow-up
actions are taken by the management to review and monitor the implementation of internal
auditors’ recommendation.

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors {55- 1} and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings {55-2} issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (1CSH).

(a) The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016} during the year along with their status as at the end of
the financial year — Not Applicable.

(b) the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof — Not Applicable.
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The Company wishes to bring about employee participation in the growth and prospects of the
company has issued Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP/ Plan) right from the initial year of
incorporation that would encourage a long term and committed involvement of the employees in the
ownership and future of the company.

Employees are covered by the Plan implemented from time to time and are granted an option to
purchase shares of the Company subject to certain vesting conditions. The plan will be administered
by the 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee’ constituted by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The information pertaining to ESOP in terms of Rule 12{9) and 16{4) of the Companies {Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure Il1.

As required pursuant to section 92{3) of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 12{1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the complete annual return for the year 2020-21
is available on the website of the Company a!

Disclosure with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5{1), {2) and (3} of Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in Annexure IV,

The Company has also adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the
provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, constituting the terms of appointment and
remuneration, including the appointment criteria, of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP),
senior management persannel and other employees of the Company.

During the FY21, policy was revised and adopted at the Board meeting held on 15" August 2020
incorporating aspects in relation to Annual Evaluation of Board by Independent Directors. The
detailed Policy covering these aspects is available on Company’s website

The terms of appointment and remuneration of Board members and other employees including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters is annexed as part of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company as
Annexure V,

The Particulars of loan, investments and guarantee for the financial have been provided in notes
to the Financial Statements of the Company.




The Company is a private limited company hence does not attract section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013. However, the Company declares that it has entered into any related party transactions
with its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies during FY 20-21.

All the transactions entered thereto, and loans provided to Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies
have been basis Arm’s length price. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee and the Board for their approval on quarterly basis. Transactions with related parties,
as per the requirements of Ind-AS, are disclosed to the notes to accounts annexed to the financial
statements.

No Material Related Party transactions i.e., transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements, were entered during the year
by your Company.

A list of all board approved transactions with the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies is enclosed
as Annexure VI.

The disclosures with respect to related party as specified in Regulation 53{f) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements} Regulations, 2015 is forming part of the financial
statements at Note no. 34.

The report on Corporate Governance for the Company is annexed as Annexure VIl and forms an
integral part of this Annual Report.

The company was compliant with all the regulatory compliances as per the Companies Act,2013,
RBI Directions and guidelines, SEBI Regulations and circulars and various tax statutes and other
regulatory bodies.

There are no material orders passed by Regulators or Courts affecting the ongoing concern status
and future operations of the Company.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the FY 20-21.

The Company has two Wholly-Owned Subsidiary Companies and no Associate, Holding, and/ Joint
Venture Companies. The information as required under the first provision to Sub-Section {3) of
Section 129 is given in Form AOC- 1 in Annexure V1.

1. Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited, a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Vivriti Capital
Private Limited, was incorporated on 21° February 2019 with the object to carry on the
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Business of Alternative Investment Funds {AIF}. The Subsidiary has commenced its
operations and has set up two funds.

2. CredAvenue Private Limited, a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Vivriti Capital Private Limited
was incorporated on the 21st day of August, 2020 with the object to carry on the business
of Fintech Company.

Highlights of performance of Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited (“VAM”)

Vivriti Asset Management (VAM) was set up in the year 2019 to be a significant player in Indian
perferming credit markets. The Company manages Alternative Investment Funds (“AlFs”} registered
with Securities and Exchange Board of India {“SEBI”), which have seen participation by Indian and
giobal investors. It registered a Category Il master trust — Vivriti Vihaan Trust —with SEBI in the financial
year 2020-21 and launched its first scheme Vivriti Samarth Bond Fund (“SBF”), which announced first
close in March 2020.

In March 2021, the Company anncunced final close of SBF at commitment of INR 265 crore. The SBF
as on March 31, 2021, manages assets of INR 157.50 crore.

in the firancial year 2020-21, the Company launched 2 {two} more schemes under Vivriti Vihaan Trust,
as follows:

Vivriti India Impact Bond Fund:

Vivriti India impact Bond Fund (“VIIBF”) invests in debt securities issued by last mile financial services
providers that extend small ticket loans to low-income households and small enterprises. The VIIBF
announced first close in December 2021 and as on March 31, 20201 manages assets of INR 130.75
crore.

Vivriti Short Term Bond Fund:

Vivriti Short Term Bond Fund {“VSTBF”) invests in debt securities rated "A-" or better issued by
operating companies with track record of scale, profitability and execution. VSTBF announced its first
close in March 2021 and as on March 31, 2021 currently manages assets of INR 75 crore.

Highlights of performance of CredAvenue Private Limited {“CAPL")

CAPL provides a secured technology platform serving as transaction discovery marketplace
between borrowers and lenders/investors, one stop retail portfolio management solution for
banks as well as a co-origination/8C platform.

Online Marketplace: Platform to explore, evaluate, execute and monitor debt transactions where
borrowers can access diverse range of lenders/Investors and a lender/investor can explore
enterprises across a spectrum of sectors, scale, rating.

¢ Allows lenders access all deals and borrower related information critical for credit decision
making using an exhaustive set of analytical tools, models, reporting solutions.

¢ Automated workflows allow seamless, efficient, fast execution of fransactions. The
platform addresses the entire lifecycle of a transaction and brings together the different
spokes of a deal through a collaboration module.

CredAvenue has already facilitated aver 1600+ transactions worth over Rs, 50,000+ Cr during the

FY21, enabling price discovery, data insights & expands debt market participation. The pI;':}l_thJr,._r;]_-_T
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is currently being used by 650+ Borrowers/Issuers, 250+ Lenders/Investors, rating agencies,

lawyers etc.

The Company has no activity relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption and
the requirement of disclosure of particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology
absorption in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 does not arise. However,
your Company has been increasingly using information technology in its operations and promotes

conservation of resources.

Technology Absorption

improvement, cost reduction,
product develapment or import
substitution

Sr. Particulars

No.
Efforts made towards technology NA
absorption
Benefits derived like product NA

In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
Financial year):

a. Details of technology imported;

b. Year of import;

¢. Whether the technology been
fully absorbed;

d. If not fully absorbed, areas
where absarption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof.

During the year under review, the
company has not imported any
technology.

Expenditure incurred on Research
and Development.

During the year under review, the
Company has not spent towards Research
& Development




During the year under review, there was no Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo from the

operations of the Company.

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) granted the Certificate of Registration to the Companyin January 2018
vide Registration No. N-07.00836, to commerce the business of non-banking financial institution
without accepting deposits. During March 2019, the company has crossed the threshold of
INR.500 crores in total assets size and become a Non-Deposit Taking Systemically important Non-
Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND-SI). The Company has complied with and continues to
comply with all the applicable regulations and directions of the RBI.

Pursuant to RBI Master Direction-Information Technology Framework for the NBFC sector, the
Company has constituted an IT Strategy Committee to review the IT strategies in line with its
corporate strategies, cyber security arrangements and other matters related to IT governance.

Disclosures pursuant to RBI Master Directions, unless provided in the Directors’ Report, form part
of the notes to the standalone financial statements.

The Company has issued Listed Non-convertible debentures of INR 295 Crores and unlisted NCDs
of INR 50 Crores during the year ended 315 March 2021. The Securities are listed with BSE Limited,
and the Company complies with all relevant SEBI Regulations in this connection.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
controlted structured entities {collectively known as ‘the Group’}. The Group consolidates an
entity when it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and could affect those returns through its power
over the investee. The financial statements {Standalone and consolidated) have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, {the 'Act'), other
relevant provisions of the Act. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Internal control systems at Vivriti Capital Private Limited are adequate and commensurate with
its size and the nature of its operations. The Company’s system of internal controls is designed to
provide a high degree of assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the
adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of financial controls and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.




To ensure that assets are safeguarded against losses that may arise due to unauthorized use or
disposition, company has in place adequate systems to ensure that assets and transactions are
authorised, recorded and reported.

The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the essential
components of various critical processes, physical and operational which include its design,
implementation and maintenance along with periodical internal review of operational
effectiveness and sustenance.

The internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were adequate and
operating effectively.

Certain statements in this Report may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied,
depending upon economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental/related factors.

The Company and its Directors wish to extend their sincere thanks to the Members of the
Company, Executives, Staff and workers at all levels for their continuous cooperation and
assistance,

On Behalf of the Board/-

For Vivriti Capital Private Limited

For Viyriti Nanital Drivata | imitad For Vi ) Limited
MENEgIiy wieuwn I Director

Name: Vineet Sukumar Name: Gav
Managing Director Managing —.. ww.w.
DIN: 06848801 DIN:07767248
Address: 4, KG Valmiki Apts, Address: 19, B-103, Manasarovar Apt
3rd Seaward Road, Valmiki Nagar, 3™ Seaward road, Valmiki Nagar,
Thiruvamiyur, Chennai — 600041 Thiruvamiyur, Chennai - 600041

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 April 2021
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Lompany secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To

The Members,

Vivriti Capital Private Limited,

12* Floor, Prestige Polygon, No. 471, Annasalai,
Nandanam, Chennai 600035, Tamilnadu, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Vivriti Capital Private Limited (heremafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Vivriti Capital Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and retwrns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conducr of
secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to us and the representations made by the
management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the (inancial year ended on 317 March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under
and also that the company has proper board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made

availeble to us and maintained by Vivriti Capital Private Limited’s for the financial year ended on

31" March, 2021 according to the applicable provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1992 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investrment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

V. The following laws, regulations, directions, orders applicable specifically to the Company:

a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Directions, 2016.

. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016.

d. Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directic
2016.

© 04442047894 " New No. 74, {Old No.62}, Trird Floor
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Lompany Secretaries

e. (Guidelines to Fair Practice Code.

[ Guidelines for Asset-Liability Management (ALM} systemn in Non-Banking Financial
Companies;

‘Know Your Customer’ (KYC) Guidelines — Anti Money Laundering Standards (AML) -
‘Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 - Obligations of NBFCs in terms of Rules
notified there under.

:‘}‘q

h. Raising money thourgh Private Placement of NCDs by NBFCs RBI Guidelines.
i.  Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector, 2017.
j.  Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

k. Master Direction - Miscellancous Non-Banking Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
201e.

l. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016.

m. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’} and the rules made there
under;

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.
Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management.

With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax and Service Tax Rnles, Goods and Service Tax
we have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for ensuring
compliances under various Acts and based on the information and explanation provided to us by
the management and officers of the Company and also on verification of compliance reports
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, we report that adequate systems are
in place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws as mentioned above.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1.

iti.

iv.

Secretarial Standard 1 and 2 issued by The Tnstitute of Company Secretaries of India have been
generally complied with.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Jssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

. 044920475894 . New No. 74, [Old No.62), Third Floor,
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Lompany Secretaries
. -he Debt Listing Agreement entered into by the Cornpany with BSE Limited.

During the audit period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Circular etc.,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with provisions of the Act.

Certain meetings have been convened and held at short notice, notice has been given to all directors
with an agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent/tabled at the meeting and a system exists
for seeking further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, roles,

regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the following significant events have taken place:

1. Appointment of Nominee Director:

Appointment of Mr. Kartik Srivatsa (DIN : (3559152) Nominee Director with effect
from 30™May, 2020.

2. Resignation of Independent Director:

Mr.Sridhar Srinivasan (DIN: 07240718) was resigned as Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 28™ August, 2020.

3. Alteration of Managing Directors Remuneration for F.Y 2020-2021

Board altered the remuneration paid to Managing Directors of Rs.68,75,000 P.A each
to Mr. Vineet Sukumar and Mr. Gaurav Kumar with effect from 01 ]uly, 2020.

4, Increase In The Authorised Capital:

The Authorized Share Capital of the company Increased from INR. 99,34,80,350 to

Rs.104,43,70,630 vide Extra Odinary General Meeting dated 14" September, 2020

amended the Memorandum of Association to reflect these changes.

L3

Issue and Allotment of Equity and Preference Share:

e

#  Allotment of 11,51,310 Equity shares to the trustees of Vivriti ESOP Trust to
Vivriti Emplovee Stock Option Plan 2020.

# Issued and Allotment of 5,796,936 Series B2 Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares to Creation Investnents India I, LLC on a private
placement basis through preferential allotment at issued price of Rs. 173.66/-

including Premium.

T 044-4204789%4 ~ New No, 74, [Old No.&2}, Third Floor,
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Issue and Allotment of Non Convertible Debenture and Commercial

Paper:
» Obtained consent of the members to

L. Issue Non-Convertible Debentures shall not at any time exceed INR.
3000 Crores or the aggregate of the paid up capital and free reserves
of the Company, whichever is higher.

1. Issue and allot Commercial Paper through delegation of powers to
committee(s) duly constituted by the Board up to an amount of INR
100 Crores (Rupees One Hundred Crores culy), during the financial
year 2020-2021, in one or more tranches to the eligible investors.

7 lssued and Allotment of 500 Fully paid up, rated, listed, secured,
dematerialised, redeemable, taxable, “Non-convertible debentures” each
having a face value of INR 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) aggregating
up to INR 50,00,00,000/- comprising two series (Series A and Series B} of
INR 25,00,00,000 /- each, together, inclusive of INR 25,00,00,000 /- on a
fully paid basis and on a private placement basis.

v

issued and allotment 200 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable,
Taxable, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures of
face value of INR 5,00,000/- each, aggregating up to INR 10,00,00,000/-

issued on a fully paid private placement basis.

> Issued 1,450 Secured, Rated, Senior, Listed, Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
convertible Debentures (NCD) and subsequently, allotted 400 NCD having a
face value of INR 10,00,000/- each on a fully paid private placement basis.

hrd

issued and allotment of 200 rated, senior, secured, transferable, listed,
redeernable, non-convertible debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000/-
each, aggregating up to INR 20,00,00,000/- issued on a fully paid private
placement basis.

» Issued and allotrent of 500 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeernable,
Taxable, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures of
face value of INR 10,00,000/- cach, aggregating up to INR 50,00,00,000/-
issued on a fully paid private placement basis.

v

Issued and allotment 100 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable,
Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000/-
each, aggregating up to INR 10,00,00,000/- issued on a fully paid private
placernent basis.

¥ lssued and allgtment of 500 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable,
Taxable, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures of
face value of INR 10,00,000/- each, aggregating up to INR 50,00,00,000/-
issued on a fully paid private placement basis along with green shoe obtion.

- 04442047894 New No. 74, fOld No.&2], Third Flgor,
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¥

Issued and allotment of 400 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable,
Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000/-
each, aggregating up to INR 40,00,00,000/- issued on a fully paid private

placement basis.

Issued and allotment of 750 Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable,
Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000/-
each, aggregating up to INR 75,00,00,000/- issued on a fully paid private
placement basis.

7. Restated the Articles of Association of the Companv:

Members approved the restated Articles of Association on 21* September, 2020 as per
the Amended and Restated Shareholders'Agreement.

S. Listing of Non-Convertible Debentures:

The Company listed its Non-Convertible Debentures with Bombay Stock Exchange.

Date: 28-04-2021
Place: Chennai

For BP & Assodiates
Company Secretarics

(g

C Prabhakar

Partner

CP No: 11033 | M No: 30433
UDIN: A030433C000201032
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To

The Members,

Vivriti Capital Private Limited,

12" Floor, Prestige Polygon, Ne. 471, Annasalai,
Nandanam, Chennai 600035, Tamilnadu, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the respensibility of the management of the company.
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

[ 1]

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
dene on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Account of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on a test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For BP & Associates
Cornpany Secretaries
Date: 28-04-2021

Place: Chennai W

C Prabhakar

Parmer

CP No: 11033 | M No: 30433
UDIN: A030433C000201032

CQ44-420479%94 _' New No. 74, [Old No.52], Third Floor,
secreEna@hporpadvisors.com . Aishaya Flats, 1 2Th Avenuie,
| W DpCOrpaTVISOrs. com  Ashok Nagar, Chennai-83.



Particulars

ESOP 2018

ESOP 2013

ESOP 2018 N

ESOP 2020

Quantum of Pool

1922500

467000

800000

1151310

Revised Pool - Transfer
of unvested cancelled
options to latest pool

1736500

322000

699500

1582810

Options granted ({live
employees)

1627500

317500

649500

1635000

Options vested (Live)

242750

30250

129375

Options exercised

150250

5000

15000

The total number of
shares arising as a
result of exercise of
options

150250

5000

15000

Options  lapsed -
{unvested + vested
lapsed + surrendered )

278000

146500

167500

131000

The exercise price

Multiple Prices —47.48, 71.67,173.66

Variation in terms of
options

money realized by
exercise of options till
date {INR}

1502500

2,37,400

10,75,050

Total number of
options in  force:
Granted + vested

1469250

316000

647000

1635000

employee wise details
of options granted to:-
(live employees)

35

19

26

77

(i) key managerial
personnel

N

(i) any other employee
who receives a grant of
options in any one year
of option amounting to
five per cent or more of
options granted during
that year.

NIL

NIL

NIL

iii) identified
empiloyees who were
granted option, during
any one year, equal to
or exceeding one per
cent of the issued
capital {excluding

NIL

NIL

NIL




outstanding warrants

and conversions) of the

company at the time of
| grant.

Disclosure as per Rule 16(4) of COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES) RULES, 2014 is
applicable to the Company in accordance with Section 62 of Companies Act, 2013 during the FY

20-21:
(a} the names of the employees wha have not exercised the voting rights directly;

The voting rights of employee shareholders shall rest with Promoter shareholders, who shall be
exercising the rights on behalf of the former. Hence, there are no employees qualifying under this
item.

(b) the reasons for not voting directly — Kindly refer to point {a) above.

(c} the name of the person who is exercising such voting rights; Mr. Vineet Sukumar, Mr. Gaurav
Kumar (Promoter shareholders)

{d) the number of shares held by or in favour of, such employees and the percentage of such
shares to the total paid up share capital of the company; 1,39,000 shares corresponding to 0.89%
of shareholding.

{e) the date of the general meeting in which such voting power was exercised; — Nil
{f) the resolutions an which votes have been cast by persons holding such voting power; — Nil
{g) the percentage of such voting power to the total voting power on each resolution;— Nil

(h) whether the votes were cast in favour of or against the resolution- — Not applicable.




a. Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the
financial year:

S No Name of Directors Director’s Employees’ Ratio
(Executive} Remuneration Median
(IN INR) Remuneration
(In INR)
1. Mr. Vineet Sukumar 85,93,750 15,97,000 5.4:1
2. Mr. Gaurav Kumar 85,93,750 15,597,000 5.4:1

b. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the Financial Year vis-a-vis last financial year:

Name of director/ Key Managerial % increase in remuneration vis-3-vis last
Personnel financial year

Mr. Vineet Sukumar, Managing Director (38)

Mr. Gaurav Kumar, Managing Director (38)

Mr. Shaik Mohammed trfan Basha, Chief 0%

Financial Officer

Ms. P S Amritha, Company Secretary 0%

a. the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year — Average 90%

b. the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:
As on 31%t March 2021, the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the
Company were 43. Further, as on 30" September 2020, there were aggregate of 208
employees on payroll of the Company. In light of the formation of subsidiary, i.e.,
CredAvenue Private Limited and organizational movement inter-se. the employee
count was thereafter reduced.

¢. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;

- Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year was Nil and the increase in the managerial remuneration
was Nil.

Chennai {7
600035/2;




d. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company affirms that remuneration of directors and employees of the company
is in accordance with the remuneration policy of the company;

B. Information as per Section 197{12}) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5{2) & 5(3)} The
Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming part
of the Board’s Report for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021:

The Statement containing such particulars of employees as required in terms of provision of
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2} and 5{3) of the Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of the Annual Report. Pursuant
to the provision of the Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the reports and accounts, as
set out therein, are being sent to all the Members of the Company, excluding the aforesaid
information and the same is open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during
working hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and if any members is interested in
obtaining such information, may write to the Director at the Registered Office of the Company in
this regard.

{iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration
in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is
in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds
by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the
equity shares of the company - Nil

Particulars Mr Vineet Sukumar Mr Gaurav Kumar

(i} designation of the | Managing Director Managing Director
employee;

(ii}) remuneration received; INR, 1,94,68,753.2* INR. 1,94,68,753.2%*
(ili} nature of employment, | Full time Full time

whether contractual or

otherwise;

(iv) gualifications and | 17 + years experience 14+ years experience

experience of the employee; o
P ploy B. Tech - IIT, Karagpur BA — Delhi University

MBA — Finace IIM,Bangalore | MBA Finance — IRMA, Anand

{v) date of commencement of | 30-08-2017 22-06-2017
employment;

{vi} the age of such employee; | 42 Years 39 Years
(vii) the last employment | IFMR Capital - CEQ IFMR - CBO

held by such employee
before joining the company;

(viii) the percentage of equity | 31.33 31.33
shares held by the employee
in the company within the




Fmeaning of clause (iii) of sub-
rule (2) above

{ix} whether any such | NA NA
employee is a relative of any
director or manager of the
company and if so, name of
such director or manager:

*Note: The figures given above includes arrears of salary due to be paid.
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1.PREFACE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 [the “Act”), Vivriti Capital Private Limited (the
“Company”) is required to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee {the “Committee”™).

The Committee determines and recommends to the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”} the
compensation payable to the Directors. Remuneration for the Executive Directors consists of a fixed component
and a variable component linked to the long-term version, medium term goals and annual business plans.

Section 178 of the Act provides that the Committee shall recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, further the Committee shall also
formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

The Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Act read along with the
applicable rules thereto.

The Board has approved this policy in its meeting held on 10™ August 2019.
2. OBJECTIVE

a. To lay down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to become directors and such persons
who may be appointed as the Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company.

b. To determine the qualifications, paositive attributes and independence of the Board and to ensure Board
Diversity.

¢. To recommend the Board for determining the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees.

d. To set the criteria for evaluation of the performance of the Board and other employees of the Company.
3. DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used in this Policy have the meanings ascribed to them
hereunder.

“Key Managerial Personnel” {as defined in Section2(51} of the Act] in relation to the Company, means:

a. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager

b. Company Secretary .
¢. Whole Time Director

d. Chief Financial Officer and

e. Such other officer as may be prescribed by the Government.

The expression “senior management’ means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team other than the Board. This would include all members of management one level below the
executive directors, including ali the functional heads.

4. 5COPE
This Policy shall be applicable to:
a. Board

b. Key Managerial Personnel as defined under Section 2(51} of the Act




¢. Senior Managerial Personnei shall mean personnel of the company who are members of its core management
team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this shall comprise of all members of management one level below
the Executive Directors, including all functional heads.

d. Other employees of the Company
5. INTERPRETATION

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Act, as
amended from time to time.

6. GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The Policy ensures that

a. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors
of the guatity required to run the Company successfully;

b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

c. Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the long-term interests of the company and its
shareholders;

d. Minimize complexity and ensure transparency;

e. Link to long term strategy as well as annual business performance of the Company;

f. Promoters a culture of meritocracy and is linked to key performance and business drivers; and
g. Reflective of line expertise, market competitiveness to attract the best talent.

7. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee, inter alia, will be the following:

a. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and/or removal.

b. To carry nut evaluation of every director’s performance.

¢. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees.

d. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

e. To recommend/review remuneration of the Whole-time Director(s) based on their performance and defined
assessment criteria.

f. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by a statutory
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

g. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or apprapriate for the perfarmance of its duties.
& MEMBERSHIP

a. The Committee shall comprise of at least three or more non-executive directors out of which not less than one-
half shali be independent Directors.

b. The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the Act and
applicable statutory requirement.




c. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d. Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board.

5. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.
10. APPOINTMENT CRIERTIA FOR THE BOARD AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

A. FOR THE BOARD

1.1 APPOINTMENT CRITERIA

1.1.1 MANAGING DIRECTOR/WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

a. The Managing Director/Whole-Time Director shall be appointed as per the applicable provisions of the Act and
rules made there under.

b. The person to be appointed will be assessed against a range of criteria which shall include but shall not be
limited to qualifications, skills, industry experience, fit & proper, background and other attributes required for the
said pasition.

¢. The Managing Director/Whole-Time Director shall have all the powers and authorities as prescribed by the
Board of Directors and as provided in the Articles of Association and applicable provisions of the Act. The
Managing Director/Whole-Time Director will be overall in-charge of the business, administration and other affairs
of the Company subject to the superintendence, control and directions of the Board of Directors #nd he shall
guide, control and supervise the employees of the Company, their functions, the business carried on by the
Company and all administrative matters.

1.1.2 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

a. The Non-Executive Director shall be appeinted as per the applicable provisions of the Act and rules made there
under.

b. The person to be appointed shall be assessed on various parameters such as qualification, relevant experience
and expertise, integrity, skill sets etc. The person considered to be appointed as a Non-Executive Director should
possess relevant expertise which will help the person to act objectively and constructively.

1.2 NOMINATION PROCESS

a. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall be responsible to review the structure, composition and
diversity of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes/ new appointments to
complement the Company's objectives and strategies.

b. The Committee shall ensure that the Board has appropriate skills, professional knowledge, characteristics and
experience in diverse fields like finance, banking, insurance, economics, carporate laws, administration, etc.
required as a whole and by its executive directars, non- executive directors and independent directors in their
individual capacity.

¢. The Committee may on annual basis review the appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required for the
Board as a whole and its individual Directors.

d. The Committee shall while identifying and selecting suitable candidates for fresh appointment/ re-
appointment/ filling up casual vacancy shall inter-alia consider the following criteria:

d.1. consider educational and professional background and personal achievements;

d.2 consider individuals who are appropriately qualified, based on their talents, experience, functional expertise
and personal skills, character and qualities;




d.3. consider criteria that promaotes diversity, including gender, age and relevant background;

d.4. engage qualified independent external advisors, if required, to assist the Committee in conducting its search
for candidates that meet the criteria as laid down herein regarding the skills, experfence and diversity.

e. The proposed appointee shall also fulfil the following requirements:
e.1 Shall possess a Director Identification Number;

e.2 Shall not be disqualified under the Act;

e.3 Shall give his written consent to act as a Director;

e.4 Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee Member, the
Commifttee Meetings;

e.5 Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company for Directors and Senior Management
Personnel;

e.6 Shall disclose his concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corparate, firms, or other
assoctation of individuals including his shareholding, Committee membership/chairmanship at the first meeting
of the Board in every financial year.

e.7 Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time under the Act and other relevant laws.

{. Upon receiving the consent to act as a Director, the profile of the person proposed to be appointed as a Director,
shall be placed before the Board for its consideration and approval.

. As per the provisions of the Act, appointment of Directors by the Board shall be placed before the shareholders
for their approval.

1.3 FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA

At the time of appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, the Company shalt be required to follow the due
diligence process as stated in the Company’s Policy on Fit and Proper criteria for the Directors, approved by the
Board in its meeting held on 19th April 20185.

1.4 TERM AND TENURE

Managing Director/ Whole-time Director the Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing
Director or Wholetime Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

B. FOR THE EMPLOYEES
1.5 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP} and Senior Management Personnel

a. Section 203 of the Act provides for appointment of whole-time Key Manageria! Personnel such personnel shall
be appointed by means of resolution of the Board containing the terms and conditions of such appointment.

b. The Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel should comprise of individuals with
appropriate mix of skills, experience and personal attributes. The said employees should be adept and understand
the business and the environment in which the Company operates and perform towards the achievement of
Company objectives and goals.

¢. For the appointment of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel, the following criterias
shall be considered:

c.1 assessing the appointee against a range of criteria which includes but not limited to gualifications, skills,
regional and industry experience, background and other qualities required to operate successfulty in the
respective position,
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¢.2 the extent to which the appaintee is likely to contribute to the overall effectiveness of the organization, wark
canstructively with the existing team and enhance the efficiencies of the Company;

¢.3 Personal specifications like degrze holder in relevant disciplines; experience of management in a diverse
organization; excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skills; demonstrable leadership skills,
commitment to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity, commitment to the promotion of equal
opportunities and skills must also be considered.

d. The appointments of one level below the Executive Director shall be within the ambit of the Committee and
the Commiittee shall be duly infarmed on the appointments at the Senior Management Personnel level and above.

1.6 Other Employees

The Company shall recruit individuals with high level of integrity and having desired gqualification, skill sets and
experience relevant to the Company’s requirements for the specific position for which such individual is
interviewed.

11. REMUNERATION CRITERIA FOR THE BOARD AND THE EMPLOYEES
A) Bemuneration paid to Executive Directors

a. The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board in the Board meeting, subject to the subsequent approval by the
shareholders at the general meeting and such other authorities, as the case may be.

b. At the Beard meeting, only the Non-Executive and Independent Directors participate in approving the
remuneration paid to the Executive Directors. The remuneration is arrived by considering various factors such as
qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the industry and the financial position of the
company. The elements of the remuneration and limits are pursuant to the clause 178, 197 and Section V of the
Act.

Remuneration Policy Structure The remuneration structure for the Executive Directors would include the
following components:

a) Basic Salary - Provides for a fixed, per month, base level remuneration to reflect the scale and dynamics of
business to be competitive in the axternal market. - Are normally set in the home currency of the Executive
Director and reviewed annually. - Will be subject to an annual increase as per recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors.

b) Commission - Executive Directors will be allowed remuneration, by way of commission which is in addition to
the Basic Salary, Perquisitas and any other Allowances, benefits and amenities. - Subject to the condition that the
amount of commission shall not exceed 1% of net profit of the company in a particular financial year in the manner
referred in Section 197 & 198 of Companies Act 2013.The amount of commission shall be paid subject to
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors.

¢} Perguisites and Allowances - & basket of Perquisites and Allowances would also form a part of the remuneration
structure.

d) Contribution to Provident and Other funds in addition to the above, the remuneration would also include: -
d.1 Contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds
d.2 Gratuity

e} Minimum Remuneration - If in any financial year during the tenure of the Executive Directors, the company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, they shall be entitled to, by way of Basic Salary, Perquisites, allowances,
not exceeding the ceiling limit of 2,00,000 per month, and in addition hereto, they shall also be eligible for
perguisites not exceeding the limits specified under Part IV of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013




Remuneration payable to Non-Executive & Independent Directors or other such limits as prescribes by the
Government from time to time as Minimum Remuneration, whichever is higher.

B} Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors

The Remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors would be as per recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors. It woutd be pursuant to the provisions of
sections 197,198 of the Act. Remuneration payable to Non-Executive & Independent Directors.

C) Remuneration Philosophy for Key managerial personnel, senior management & staff

The compensation for the Key managerial personnel, senior management and staff at the Company would be
guided by the external competitiveness and internal parity through annual benchmarking surveys. Internally,
performance ratings of all the Company’'s employees would be spread across a normal distribution curve. The
rating obtained by an employee will be used as an input to determine Variable and Merit Pay increases. Variable
and Merit pay increases will be calculated using & combination of individual performance and organizational
performance. Grade wise differentiation in the ratio of variable and fixed pay as well as in increment percentage
must be made. Compensation can also be determined hased on identified skill sets critical to success of the
Company. It is determined as per management's review of market demand and supply.

11. Annual Evaluation of the Board by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company meest once on an annual basis. A formal evaluation of the Board and
Governance structure of the Company is carried out by the Independent Directors, basis and including but not
limited to following evaluation criteria:

a) Board effectiveness and regular functioning
b} Meetings and procedures

¢} Business strategy

d} Risk Management

e} Board and Committee cammunication

Feedback, if any provided is shared and discussed at meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
noted by the Board.

oqr

Chennai

=\ 600 035
?ﬁ&//,’rg-




1. List of Board approved transactions with Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited, a

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company

Name (s} of the related party & nature of

Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited (VAM) —

relationship Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Nature of contracts/ | Duration of the Salient terms of Date of Amount
arrangements/ contracts/ the contracts or approval by | paid as
transaction arrangements/ arrangements or the Board advances, if
transaction transaction any
including the value,
if any {in lakhs)
Interest income 72 Months 201.65 | 15-02-2020 | -
receivable on Loan
provided to VAM
Rent and amenities — | Renewed Sub-lease 5.84 | 06-11-2020 | -
VCPL Rental income | agreement effective
receivable from from 21% February
VAM 2020
Fees and - 11.45
Commission
Loan provided to - 500.00 -
VAM {with Interest rate
at 16.33% payable
on half-yearly
basis.)
Investment in VAM, | - 2,750.00 | 15-08-2020
{(including beneficial and 27-02-
ownership) 2021
Loans repaid - 1,400.00




2. List of Board approved transactions with CredAvenue Private Limited, a Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary Company

Name (s) of the related party & nature of

CredAvenue Management Private Limited {CAPL)

relationship —Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Nature of contracts/ | Duration of the Salient terms of Date of Amount
arrangements/ contracts/ the contracts or approval by | paid as
transaction arrangements/ arrangements or the Board advances, if
transaction transaction any
including the value,
if any (in [akhs)
Rent and amenities — | Sub-lease agreement 325.98 | 07-11-2020 |-
VCPL Rental income | effective from 17™
receivable from September 2020
CAPL
Reimbursement of - 347.14 | 27-02-2021 | -
expenses incurred
for CAPL
Platform fees - 468.27 | 07-11-2020 | -
Sale of fixed assets - 155.95 -
Fees and - 69.71 | 07-11-2020 | -
commission
investment in CAPL, | - 5,001.00 | 15-08-2020 | -
(including beneficial and 07-11-
ownership) 2020




1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

Vivriti Capital Private Limited (“Company”) lays deep emphasis on Corporate Governance and has
created a robust governance structure keeping in mind the Company’s ambitious growth plans and
scalability. The Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy envisage adherence to the highest
standards of transparency, accountability and balance in all areas of its operations and its interactions
with all its stakeholders, including its customers, shareholders, employees, Regulators and others. The
objective is to enhance shareholder value continuously.

2. Guidelines on Corporate Governance

The Reserve Bank of india (“RBI”) has issued the Master Circular — “Non-Banking Financial Companies
— Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015” dated July 1, 2015 and bearing reference
number DNBR (PD) CC.N0.053/03.10.119/2015-16 {“Master Circular”) which applies inter alia to every
non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company with an asset size of INR 500 Crore and above
(NBFC-ND-SI}, as per its last audited balance sheet and the Master Direction— Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {“Master Direction”). The Company is registered with the RBI as a
non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”). The Company is a systemically
important NBFC and accordingly the Master Circular is applicable to the Company. Further, in terms
of the Master Circular and the Master Direction, the Company is required to frame internal guidelines
on corporate governance with the approval of the board of directors of the Company and accordingly
the Company has put in place this policy on Corporate Governance {“Corporate Governance Policy”).

3. Board of Directors

The Board has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-executive, and Independent Directors. We
acknowledge that a well-performing Board structure is pertinent for success and growth of the
business and thus ensured highest levels of corparate governance through transparency and effective
communication flow. While Executive Directors are entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Company and ensure effective execution of business plans, the Non-
Executive Directors bring independent perspective and strategic support.

The Board is committed to the multifarious aspects pertaining to business strategy, institutional risk,
people, stakeholders, society and compliance and endeavors to meet the related obligations.

As on the end of March 2021, the Board comprises of 6 members, out of which two are Executive,
three Non-Executive Nominee Director and one Non-Executive Woman Independent Director. None
of the directors are related to each other.

The Independent Director has been appointed for a fixed tenure of five years from their respective
dates of appointment and has confirmed to the criteria of independence laid down under the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder as amended from time to time and the RBI Master
Directions applicable on Systemically Important NBFCs, in relation to fit and proper criteria of
directors.
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The reporting structure, as shown below, between the Board, Board Committees and Management
Executive Committees forms the backbone of the Group’s Corporate Governance framework.

tnarannsmars T e A

During the year under review, the Board met 8 (Eight) times, i.e., at least once in a calendar quarter
and the maximum time gap between any two Meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty
days as per the applicable law. The requisite quorum was present for all the meetings.

The composition of the Board of Directors as on 31 March 2021 along with the number of meetings

attended and shareholding is provided below:

S. Name of Designation DIN No of Board No of other Number of
No. the meetings held | Directorships shares*
Director? during the year
Held | Attended
1 Mr. Gaurav | Managing 07767248 8 8 2 53,05,701
Kumar Director
2 Mr. Vineet Managing 06848801 8 8 3 53,05,701
Sukumar Directar
3 Ms. Independent | 00994532 B 8 S -
Namrata Director &
Kaul Chairperson
of the
Board?
4 Mr. Kenneth | Nominee 02545813 8 8 12 -
Dan Vander | Director
Weele




5 Mr. John Nominee 07298703 B B 7 -
Tyler Day Director

6 Mr. Kartik Nominee 03559152 B 6 14 -
Srivatsa? Director

1 Mr. Sridhar Srinivasan (DIN 07240718} resiened as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 28" August
2020. He attended 3 (three) Board meetings held on 2B8-04-2020, 22-05-2020 and 15-08-2020 during the period under
review.

2Ms. Namrata Kaul {DIN 00934532} was elected as the Chairperson for the Board mestings with effect from 12t November
2020.

3 Mr. Kartik Srivatsa [DIN 03559152) was appointed as a Nominee Director with effect from 30t May 2020.

4 Comprises of equity shares, CCPS and OCRPS. Mr. Gaurav Kumar and Mr. Vineet Sukumar hold 49,00,000 fully paid-up
equity shares and 4,05,701 partly paid up Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares each.

a) Details of Directors or Key Managerial personal appointed or resigned or details of change
in designation during the Financial Year under review:

5. Name of the Director | Change in Designation Date of | Date of
No Appointment Cessation
1 Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Appointment as Nominee | 30.05.2020 -
Director
2 Mr. Sridhar Srinivasan | Resignation - 28.08.2020

A formal annual evaluation of the Board of the Company was carried out by Ms. Namrata Kaul,
the Independent Director, during the FY21. The evaluation was broadly carried out around
effectiveness of Board and functioning, meetings and procedures, business strategy and risk
management, Board communication and Committees.

1. Audit Committee:
1.1 Compoaosition:

S.no Members Designation
1 Ms. Namrata Kaul Independent Director
2 Mr. Vineet Sukumar Managing Director
Permanent
Invitee/Observers:
3 Mr. Gaurav Kumar Managing Director




4 Mr. John Tyler Day Nominee Director _I

1.2 Brief description of terms of reference:

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board of Directors established in accordance with the
Company’s constitution and authorised by the Board to assist it in fulfilling its statutory, fiduciary
and regulatory responsibilities.

1.3 The Audit Committee met 6 times during the FY 20-21.:

Name of | 28-04- 21-05- 14-08- 06-11- 12-11- 27-02- Total
Director 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021
Member

Mr. Vineet | Present | Present Present Present Present | Present o
Sukumar

Mr. Sridhar | Present | Present Present - - - 3
Srinivasan

Ms. Namrata | Present | Present Present Present Present | Present 6
Kaul

Mr. John | Present | Present Present Present Present | Present o
Tyler Day

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

2.1 Composition:

5.no Members Designation

1 Mr. Gaurav Kumar Managing Director

2 Mr. Kenneth Vander Weele Nominee Director

3 Ms. Namrata Kaul Independent Director

Permanent Invitee/Observer:

4 Mr. Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

2.2 Brief description of terms of reference:

The Committee shall formulate the policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of Director and the remuneration to them, Key managerial personnel (hereinafter
referred as the “KMP”} and other employees and related aspects.




2.3 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 5 times during the FY 20-21:

Name of | 21-05-2020 | 14-08-2020 | 02-09- 06-11-2020 | 27-02- Total
Director 2020 2021
Member

Mr. Gaurav | Present Present Present Present Present 5
Kumar

Mr.  Sridhar | Present Present - - - 2
Srinivasan

Ms. Namrata | Present Present Present Present Present 5
Kaul

Mr. Kenneth | Present Present -Absent Present Present 5
Dan Vander
Weele

3. Risk Committee:
3.1 Composition;

S.no Members Designation

1 Mr. Gaurav Kumar Managing Director

2 Mr. John Tyler Day Nominee Director

3 Ms. Namrata Kaul Independent Director
4 Mr. Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

3.2 Brief terms of reference:

The Risk Committee is a committee of the Board, appointed to assist the Board in assessing the
effectiveness of risk management practices followed by the Company through-

¥» Oversight of Risk Policy

» Review of changes to Company’s risk profile

» Oversight of the Credit Committee — performance, decisions and minutes of meetings
» Oversight of Company’s compliance to its stated risk appetite

3.3 The Risk Committee met 4 times during the FY 20-21:

Name of 21-05-2020 04-09-2020 06-11-2020 27-02- Total
Director 2021
Member
Mr, Gaurav Present Present Present Present 4
Kumar




Mr. Vineet Present Present Present Present il
Sukumar

Mr. Sridhar Present - - - 1
Srinivasan

Ms. Namrata Present Present Present Present 4
Kaul

Mr. John Tyler Present Present Present Present 4
Day

4. IT Strategy Committee:
4.1 Composition:

S.no Members Designation

1 Mr. Gaurav Kumar Managing Director

2 Mr. John Tyler Day Nominee Director

3 Ms. Namrata Kaul Independent Director

4 Mr. Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

5 Mr. Harshwardhan Mittal Chief Technology Office
6 Mr. Araveinth Gopinath Chief information Officer

4.2 Brief description of terms of reference:

The prime focus of the IT Strategy Committee as per the IT Framework laid down by RBI,
is on IT Governance, IT Policy, Information & Cyber Security, IT Operations, IS Audit,
Business Continuity Planning and IT Services Qutsourcing arrangements and any other
matter related to IT Governance gap-analysis vis-a-vis the Master Direction and the
proposed actions and review of the same from time to time.

4.3 The IT Strategy Committee met 4 times during the FY 20-21:

Name of Director 21-05-2020 14-08-2020 | 06-11-2020 | 27-02-2021 Total
Member

Mr. Gaurav Kumar Present Present Present Present 4

Mr. Vineet Present Present Present Present 4

Sukumar

Mr. Sridhar Present Present - - 2

Srinivasan

Mr. John Tyler Day Present Present Present Present 4




5. Corporate Social responsibility {CSR} Committee
5.1 Composition

S.no Members Designation
1 Gauray Kumar Managing Director
2 Vineet Sukumar Managing Birector
3 Namrata Kaul Independent Director

5.2 Brief description of terms of reference
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is a committee of the Board of Directors
established in accordance with the Company’s constitution and authorised by the Board
to assist the Board and the Company in fulfilling its Corporate Social Responsibility
(“CSR”). Further the Committee, recommends the amount of expenditure to be incurred
on the identified CSR activities and related aspects.

5.3 The C5R Committee met 3 times during the FY 20-21

Name of Director 14-08-2020 06-11-2020 27-02-2021 Total
Member
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Present Present Present 3
Mr. Vineet Present Present Present 3
Sukumar
Ms. Namrata Kau! Present Present Present 3
6. IT Steering Committee
6.1 Composition
Si. No. Name Designation
1 Gaurav Kumar Managing Director
2 Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

Irfan Mohammad Basha

Chief Financial Officer

Harshwardhan Mittal

Chief Technology Cfficer

Araveinth Gopinath

Chief Information Gfficer

6.2 Brief description of terms of reference
The IT Steering Committee is an executive committee of the management in accordance
with the requirements of Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the .
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NBFC Sector dated lune 08, 2017 (“Master Direction”). The Committee is operating at an
executive level and focuses on priority setting, resource allocation and project tracking,
The first meeting of IT Strategy Committee was held on 51" March 2021. All the members
were present.

7. Other Committees

7.1 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO):
The Asset Liability Committee was established by the Board of Directors of the Company
for assisting the Board in oversight of the Company’s liquidity and interest rate risk
profiles. The Committee shall comprise of two Managing Directors. The Chairperson shall
be elected at each meeting of the Committee.

5i. No. Name Designation
1 Gaurav Kumar Managing Director
2 Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

The ALCO met 39 times during the year under review. The Committee shall on annual
basis review its performance under its Charter.

7.2 Borrowing Committee
The Borrowing Committee was established by the Board of Directors of the Company for
assisting the Board in oversight of the Company’s fund-raising activities. The Committee
shall comprise of two Managing Directors. The Chairperson shall be elected at each
meeting of the Committee.

Sl No. Name Designation
1 Gaurav Kumar Managing Director
2 Vineet Sukumar Managing Director

The Committee met 46 times during the year under review and accorded its approval to
various proposals for availing financial assistance from other lenders and to approve
issuance and allotment of non-convertible debentures by the Company.

1. Remuneration to Executive Directors

The details of the remuneration paid to Mr. Gaurav Kumar and Mr. Vineet Sukumar, Managing
Directors of the Company, during the financial year 2020-21 is as under:




Mpr. Gaurav Mr. Vineet
Kumar Sukumar
Managing Managing Total Amount
Director Director {A+B=C})
Amount Amount
SI.No | Particulars of Remuneration (A) (B}
1 Gross salary -
(a) Salary as per provisions 85,93,750 85,93,750 1,71,87,500
contained in section 17{1) of
the Income Tax. 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of the Income tax Act,
1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the Nil Nil Nil
Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
as % of profit
others (specify)
5 Others, please specify
Total (A) 85,93,750 85,93,750 1,71,87,500
2. Remuneration to Independent Non-executive Directors
HNIUMCPCHUCTIL LA LIV S Sriunidi
1 Srinivasan Namrata Kaul |
(a) Fee for attending
board committee 7,00,000 14,00,000 | 21,00,000
meetings
{b) Commission - - - -
(c) Others, please
specify ) ) ) i
Total 7,00,000 14,00,000 21,00,000
Annual General meeting:
Date Time Venue Special Resolutions passed
30" May 2020 5.30 pm 12th FLOOR, 1. To approve the revised

PRESTIGE POLYGON,
NO. 471, ANNASALAI,

borrowing limits

=1 600035
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NANDANAM 2. To approve revised

CHENNAI TN 600035 borrowing limits through
issue of Debentures

3. To approve the borrowing
limits through issue of
Commercial Paper

4. To approve creation of
Security cover as per Sec
180 (1) (a)

5. To approve adoption and
implementation of Vivriti
Employee Stock Option
Plan 2020

6. To approve the grant of
option to identified
employees during any one
year, equal to or exceeding
1 percent of the issued
capital of the Company at
the time of grant of option

7. Toapprove granting of loan
to Vivriti ESOP Trust

8. To approve the grant of
option to identified
employees of the
Subsidiaries Company

9. To approve appointment of
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa, having
DIN 03559152 as Nominee
Director (Non-executive) of

the Company
Attendance at the AGM
Sl. No. Name Mode of Participation
1 Gaurav Kumar Physically Present
2 Vineet Sukumar Physically Present
3 Namrata Kaul Absent
4 John Tyler Day Absent
5 Kenneth Dan Vander Weele Absent
6 Kartik Srivatsa Absent










FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/fjoint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Subsidiary No.1:

Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the Subsidiary Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited
2 CIN U65929TN2019PTC127644
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary NA

concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period

a Reporting currency and Exchange rate as NA
on the last date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

5 Share capital INR 16,89,27,460
6 Reserves & Surplus INR 3,76,38,175

7 Total Assets INR 27,72,72,018
8 Total Liabilities INR 7,07,06,383

9 Investments INR 20,29,72,597
10 Turnover INR 2,78,59,792

11 Profit before taxation INR (7,76,75,014)
12 Tax expense JNR 1,95,50,254

13 Profit after taxation INR (5,81,28,760)
14 Proposed Dividend Nil

15 Percentage of shareholding 100%




Subsidiary No.2:

Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the Subsidiary CredAvenue Private Limited
2 CIN U72900TN2020PTC137251
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary Commencing from 21 August 2020 till
concerned, if different from the holding 31 March 2021
company’s reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as NA
on the last date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share capital INR 50,01,00,000.00
6 Reserves & Surplus INR (6,69,30,017.94}
7 Total Assets INR 78,93,52,477.56
8 Total Liahilities INR 35,61,82,495.50
9 Investments INR 20,43,81,375.00
10 Turnover INR 25,27,92,189.40
11 Profit before taxation INR (8,58,26,451.00)
12 Tax expense INR 1,88,96,433.06
13 Profit after taxation INR (6,69,30,017.94)
14 Proposed Dividend Nil
15 Percentage of shareholding 100% (including beneficial ownership)
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Management Discussion and Analysis report

Industry structure and developments.

NBFCs have come a long way in terms of scale and diversity of operations post the Infrastructure
Leasing & Financial Services (IL&FS) and Dewan Housing Finance Ltd. (DHFL) events. Over the years,
the segment has grown rapidly with a few of the large NBFCs becoming comparable in size to some of
the private sector banks. The sector has also seen advent of many non-traditional players leveraging
technology to adopt tech-based innovative business models. Globally, the sector is witnessing some
transformative trends, such as rapid expansion in collective investment vehicles in the sector, increase
in cross-border linkages of such entities, increased dependence on short-term funding and increased
recourse to financial innovation such as peer-to-peer lending, crowdfunding, leveraged loans and
collateralised loan obligations (CLOs), besides increased reliance on FinTech and digital technologies.
The Indian NBFC sector has been increasing its shift towards retail loans and loans to service sector as
well as micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs), from the earlier focus on corporate sector
advances. The sector has entered into a new business landscape wherein it needs to continuously
strive to innovate and add new products to its toolkit. The core strength of NBFCs continue to include
customer base, strong distribution and servicing reach and higher risk appetite. Recently, the sector
has built its strength in distribution through non-physical points of presence, and faster scale-up and
scale-down capability.

Distribution of NBFCs: Number and Share in Assets

a Number of NBFCs as on January 31, 2021 b. Distribution of NBFCs by Asset-size In March 2020
{per cent)
ARC.28_ NercsnDsI —

NBFC-D. (4 __

Notem | Hased on NBFCs that filed retums regularly lexdoding CICs)

MNBFCSND:SI SNBRCE- ND MNBFCa-D WARC However. it includes 1 220 NBFCs-ND that filed the annoal return in
Hotes | Inchuding CICs March 2020

2 Data are provisional 2. Data are provisional
Sources BBl Sources RR1

A year and half of the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted all sectors of the economy globally including
the NBFC sector. The financial year started with a nationwide lockdown during the first wave bringing

the manufacturing and urban economy to a grinding halt while the rural economy continued to move\ Pm
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because of less strict lockdowns. In the second wave the number of positive cases increased in rural
areas compared to urban with less strict localised lockdown. The impact of second wave is much less
on companies compared to first wave, manufacturing sector has been on receiving end in both the
waves, the services sector has become the bedrock of the Indian economy, NBFC sector especially
MFI, unsecured MSME and vehicle finance were battling with credit stress, declining AUM on back of
lower disbursement and drop in collection efficiencies. The lower collections has impacted debt raising
ability of smaller players while larger player have easily raised funds with adequate liquidity position.
Relief measures from government and RBI from time to time providing government guarantees and
loan interest loans such as Targeted Long Term Repo Operations (TLTRO 2.0), Special Liquidity Scheme
(SLS), Partial Credit Guarantee Scheme (PCGS), Moratorium, Restructuring supported credit flow and
liguidity relief to the NBFC sectors.

India’s economic growth trajectory remains positive at the moment. Crucial economic segments such
as manufacturing, services, industrial output, exports and demand have gained momentum. At
present, companies are absorbing increased production cost due to demand constraints and it would
only be a matter of time when companies passing on in increased cost to consumers increasing the
Inflation. Markets are concerned about asset price inflation due to increased money supply and lower
interest rates which might push central banks fight inflation by increasing interest rates and tighter
liquidity in near future.

Our hopes of economic revival are pinned to us having an express vaccination drive, which takes away
the fear of a third wave and a revival of consumer confidence and spending.

Opportunities and Threats.
Opportunities

- The company raised INR 100 Cr of equity as part of second tranche of Series B funding in
September 2020 and concluded the financial year with PAT of INR 30 Cr i.e., 3x Y-0-Y growth.
Additional equity is a validation of business model signifying the company is very well placed
to meet the growth rebound.

- The Company has invested significantly in maintaining high level of transparency and good
corporate governance. Markets favour well rated NBFCs with high quality governance and
systems from a liquidity allocation perspective and the benefit is clearly accruing to the
Company.

- Credit growth has accelerated as firms are embarking on increasing capital expenditure after
a long break of over 5 years.

Threats

- Challenges for NBFC sector could increase due to Covid third wave. The possibility of economic
slowdown, delayed recovery, credit stress might be repeated.

- Risk of liquidity withdrawal from global markets as the US Fed reduces asset purchase or
increases interest rates.

- Volatility and correction of asset prices by RBI through asset purchase programmes may
possibly impact the company’s comfortable liquidity position.

Segment—wise or product-wise performance.

Gross loan disbursements during the year were two times of previous year at INR 2,034 Cr in FY20-21

against INR 956 Cr in FY19-20. The company has increased number of clients to 175 borrowers and.-.
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substantially expanded its presence across 26 sectors from 14 sectors last year. During the year, a new
product segment - Supply Chain Finance - was added to portfolio. Further, the Company focused on
scale up of newer segment i.e., co-origination of retail assets and supply chain financing across sectors
to make the book more granular. The Company closed the year with comfortable unencumbered cash
position of 138 Cr maintaining greater than two months of gross lender outflows. Vivriti Capital has
highest collection efficiency of 91% in June 2020 in the entire NBFC sector and collection efficiency of
99.5% as of 31** March 2021.

Product Wise Split:

Products AUM (In Cr) % of AUM

Term Debt 1,554 82%
Retail 191 10%
WCDL 104 5%
Guarantee 49 3%

Liquidity position of the company has strongly improved with 39 strong relationships as of date and
10 new lenders added during the year. Lenders have taken higher exposure in the Company. New
products were onboarded during the year, such as covered MLD issuance to HNI investors,
securitisation transactions of pass-through certificates and direct assignments were concluded,
totalling debt raise of INR 1,255 Cr.

Borrowing Product Wise:

Products Borrowing (In Cr) % of Debt

Term Loan 823 63%

NCD (incl MLD) 402 31%

WCDL 40 3%

Securitisation 35 3%
Outlook

The company aims to grow its business segments in two major segments of enterprise finance and
retail finance, with significant growth across retail business lines. The company also expects steady
growth in its enterprise lending business and intends to double its client base. The second wave of
Covid is unlikely to have an impact on the company’s asset quality. We expect profits to grow steadily
with a higher asset base, lower cost of funding, controlled credit cost and operating expenses.

Risks and concerns.

Company has constituted a risk management committee, chaired by an Independent Director, to
closely oversee the lending book as well as portfolio management. The risk management committee
reviews the risk management framework and risk appetite of the Company, examine the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management policy, and ensure appropriate and adequate reporting to
the Board with recommendations. Committee identifies risk on an ongoing basis, measures its
potential impact against a broad set of assumptions and activates what is necessary to pro-actively
manage these risks, also decide the company’s appetite or tolerance for risk.

The company has taken significant strides in portfolio diversification, with reduction in its top 20

exposures, share of single sector exposures as well as increase in the share of the retail book overthe P, .

SN
[y
)

g

e

[ Chennai |
\ 600035

RN

N=

.



course of the year. Efforts will continue to diversify the book further over the course of the coming
financial year.

Internal control systems and their adequacy.

The company has appointed PWC as its independent internal auditor. PWC conducts quarterly internal
audits of key functions evaluating completeness and adequacy of internal financial controls of the
company and presents its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee, which is chaired by
an Independent Director. The same report is also shared with Statutory auditor of the company.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

The company reported strong financial results for FY 2021:

P&L Statement Mar-21 Mar-20
Total Income 225 148
Interest Income 201 114
Interest Cost 94 62
Provision for Doubtful Debts 30 9
OPEX Expenses 61 64
Profit Before Tax 41 14
Profit After Tax 30 10
Balance Sheet Mar-21 Mar-20
Equity 797 663
Liabilities 1,398 805
Borrowings 1,368 777
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,195 1,469
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 233 495
Loans 1,620 822
Investments 294 101
Other Assets 47 50
Total Assets 2,195 1,469

> Profitability for FY21 is 3x profit of FY20 resulting from average yield on assets is ~15%, and
controlled operating expenses. This has been achieved with 100% provision coverage ratio,
resulting in 0% NNPA.

> Return on Assets ROA is at 2.4% and Return on Equity ROE is at 4.2% for financial year 2020-
2021. Asset quality at the end of the year is very good, with GNPA of 0.3%

> Equity capital of INR 100 Cr was raised as part of second tranche of Series B funding in
September 2020.

> Currently investment in subsidiaries is capped at 10% of Net worth of Vivriti Capital.



Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including

number of people employed.

During the year, the Company had set up another subsidiary — “Credavenue Private Limited” and had
infused significant capital into that Company. Vivriti Capital had also infused capital into its existing
subsidiary — Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited. These capital infusion has been directed
towards improving the infra set up at the respective companies including the Human Capital. During
the year, 120 personnel had joined the group at various levels and more particularly at the top
management level. This has ensured there is a cohesive team in place to drive/ partner the Company
and Group in its pursuance of its growth objectives.

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately
previous financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof.

The ROE for FY 21 is 4.2% as against FY 20 which was 4.8%. During the year, the economy had been
severely affected on account of COVID Impact which was intense in the first half of the year. The
second half of the year witnessed a gradual recovery in the economy. Consequent to this, the financial
institutions had significant change in their strategy wherein the increased focus was on maintaining
the collection efficiency at higher levels rather than on disbursement. This had ripple effect on the
Company and consequently the significant portion of the annual disbursement has been in the second
half of the year. This has resulted in the Yield being increasingly generated towards the later part of
the year and thus the effect on the ROE for FY 21. In-spite of the above impact the Company had still
been able to significantly sustain the ROE on YoY basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Vivriti Capital Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March
2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS"™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March 2021, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 40.8 to the standalone financial statements, which describe the potential
continuing impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the Company’s standalone financial statements and
particularly the impairment provisions are dependent on future developments, which are highly
uncertain.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Regd. Office. One International Center, Tower 3, 27" -32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Prabhadevi (West), Mumbai - 400 013, India.
Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is a limited Liability Partnership registered under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 having LLP
Identification No. AAB-8737.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter. We have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

Impairment of carrying value of loans
and advances:

The Company provides credit facility to
Corporates which are secured by receivable of
the borrowers and unsecured loans. In line
with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments,
Management estimates impairment provision
using Expected Credit loss model for the loan
| exposure. Measurement of loan impairment
| involves application of significant judgement
by the management. The most significant
judgements are timely identification and
classification of the loans, determination of
probability of defaults (PD) and estimation of
loss given defaults (LGD) based on the value
of collaterals and relevant factors. The
Company started lending activities in FY
2018-19. The Company doesn’'t have credit
loss history except for two loans which are
fully provided /written off and has assighed
PD to each borrower on the basis of the
Company’s internal rating model on various
rating agencies’ database and LGD are based
on RBI circular
DBOD.No.BP.BC.67/21.06.202/2011-12
dated 22 December 2011 on implementation
of the internal rating based (IRB) approaches
for calculation of capital charge for credit risk
for arriving at the estimated provision.

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
on financial instruments involve significant
judgements and estimates. Following are
points with increased level of audit focus:

e Classification of assets to stage 1, 2, or
3 using criteria in accordance with Ind
AS 109;

e Accounting interpretations and data
used to build and run the models;

e Inputs and Judgements used in
determination of management overlay
at various asset stages considering the
current uncertain economic
environment with the range of possible
effects unknown to the country;

Principal audit procedures performed:

We examined Board Policy approving methodologies
for computation of ECL that address policies,
procedures and controls for assessing and measuring
credit risk on all lending exposures, commensurate
with the size, complexity and risk profile specific to
the Company. The parameters and assumptions used
and their rationale and basis are clearly documented.

We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness
of controls across the processes relevant to
determination of ECL, including the judgements and
estimates.

These controls, among others, included controls over
the allocation of assets into stages including
management’s monitoring of stage effectiveness,
model monitoring including the need for post model
adjustments, model validation, credit monitoring,
individual provisions and production of journal entries
and disclosures.

We tested the completeness of loans and advances
included in the Expected Credit Loss calculations as of
31st March 2021 by reconciling it with the balances as
per loan balance register, investment register, and
open financial guarantee report as on that date.

We tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample basis
to verify that they were allocated to the appropriate
stage.

For samples of exposure, we tested the

appropriateness of determining EAD, PD and LGD.

For exposure determined to be individually impaired,
we tested a samples of loans and advances and
examined management’s estimate of future cash
flows, assessed their reasonableness and checked the
resultant provision calculations.

For forward looking assumptions used in ECL
calculations, we held discussions with management,
assessed the assumptions used and the probability
weights assigned to the possible outcomes.

We performed an overall assessment of the ECL
provision including management’s assessment on
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e The disclosures made in standalone | Covid-19 impact to determine if they were reasonable
financial statements for ECL especially | considering the Company’s portfolio, risk profile,
in relation to judgements and | credit risk management practices and the
estimates by the Management in | macroeconomic environment.

determination of the ECL. .
We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of

disclosures in compliance with the Ind AS 107 in
relation to ECL especially in relation to judgements
used in estimation of ECL provision.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the management’s report (but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon) which is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor’s report.

= Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

« When we read the management report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required
under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%t March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private
company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at the year-end except as stated in Note 35 (c) to the standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts as at year-end including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

c/'
fho=

G. K. Subramaniam

Partner

(Membership No. 109839)
(UDIN : 21109839AAAAEP1331)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28" April 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vivriti Capital Private Limited
(the “Company”) as of 315t March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
315t March 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

G. K. Subramaniam

Partner

(Membership No. 109839)
(UDIN : 21109839AAAAEP1331)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28% April 2021
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting under
clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted loan to party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act and to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us

(a) the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest and

(b) the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts are regular;

(iv) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant
of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit during the year and no order in this respect has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunals in regard to the Company.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund and other cess to the appropriate
authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods and Services
tax, Provident Fund and other cess in arrears as at 31%t March 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) There are no dues of Income-tax, and Goods and Services tax as on 315t March 2021 on
account of disputes.
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(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and
banks and dues to debenture holders.

(ix) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

(x)

debt instruments). Further in respect of moneys borrowed through term loans or debt securities,
in our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has utilised
the money for the purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending application of proceeds.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the Act do not

apply to the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is in compliance with the provisions of section 177 and section 188 of the Act. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
disclosed the details of related party transactions in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standard.

{(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year under review the

Company has made private placement of 57,96,936 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(*CCPS") bearing a face value of Rs.10/-.

In respect of the above issue, we further report that:
a. the requirement of Section 42 of the Act, as applicable, have been complied with; and

b. the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which the funds were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.
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(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and it has obtained the registration.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

e

G. K. Subramaniam

Partner

(Membership No. 109839)
(UDIN : 21109839AAAAEP1331)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 April 2021



Vivrigt Capital Private Limited

Stondalone Balvnce Sheet as at March 31, 2021
4l umennty are in Rupees lukhs, saless stoted otherwise)

Particulars Nute Nu. | As ut March 31, 2021 As af March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Financial asscts
Cash and cash cquivalont 3 1381764 3224131
Bank Balances other than sbove 4 9,511,480 46,303,51
Recetvables 3 424.44 ‘T08.83
Loans [ 1,.62,044.92 82.234.41
Investments Y 29.397.85 10.087.05
Other finuncial assets ] 297.58 244.90
Total Finnncinl Assets 2,15494.23 1.42,803.m1
Non-Financjinl assets
Currenl Tox Asscts 92 94323 1.061 27
Detered tax asscis (Net) ¥ 1.011.24 633.18
Properly, plant aml ajuipimen t 527.82 729.51
Right of use agset 874.73 .213.50
(ther intaogibke osscts L 93.28 132.38
Intangible Assets Under Development 48.96 3512
Other non-financia| assets 12 522.10 256,46
Total Non-Financial Assch 4,021.36 4,060.42
Total Assers 2,19,515.89 1,46,863.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Finnncial Linbilitics
Trade Payables 13
(1} total outstanding dvies of muicro cnicrprises and small enferprises 172
(11} total outstmding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and small 1,071.13 01,62
enterprises
Debr Securities 14 39,953,41 30,446,535
Borowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15 96,864.64 47,218.16
Other financial liabilities 16 1.267.50 2,263.74
Tota! Financial Liabilities 1,29,158.40 £0,130.07
Non-Financial Viabilities
Provisions 17 469,84 306.91
Otlrer noa-financial liabilities 18 173.18 80.42
Tntal Nan-Financial T iahilitios 64302 RT3
Total liabilitics 1,39,801.42 40,517.40
EQUITY
Pquity Share Capiial 1% 1,146.39 1.130.02
Convertible Non-participating Prefercnce Sharc Capital 19b 8,350.17 7, 77048
Onher equity 20 10,217 61 §7.44553
Total equity 79,714.17 66,346.03
Total equity and liabilities 2,19.515.59 1.46,863.43

ial I 1§

The accompanymy noles are an integral pac of the St Fi

Ta terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLE
Chartered Accountanis

P

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner

Ploce: Mumbai

Dute: April 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vivriti Canital Private Limited

.'\.-’i o
[

Gauray Knmur
Managing Dircctor
NN 07767248

i

Shaik Mohammed Irfon Basha
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: April 2K, 2021

Vw\ l.l), C),’I;JA#M L

Vineet Sukamar

Managing Director

DIN 0684880

-’g . A }"m

l

Amritha Paitenkar

Company Secrctary
Membership No: A49121




Vivriti Capital Private Fimited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

AN amounts are m Rupces lakhs, unless swared otherwise)

Particulars Note | Year ended March 31, | Yeor ended March 31,
No, 2021 2020
Revenue trom Operations
Interest Income 20,124.26 11,353.83
Fees and commission lncome 2, 1,728.03 3.407 61
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 12,00 -
Net gain on fair value change on financial instruments 23 7390 1274
Total Revenue from Operations 21,938.19 14,774.18
Other Income 24 574.05 41.58
Total Income 22,512.24 14,815.76
Fxpenscs
Finance costs 25 943522 622775
Impairment an financial instruments including write oflf 26 2.989.74 967 11
Emplayee henefit expense 27 3.66R.93 3.665.682
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 680.38 665,85
Other expenses 29 1,671.45 1.90).12
Total expenses 18,445.72 13.427.45
Profil before Tux 4,066.52 1,388.31
Tax expense
- Current tax 1.481.97 679.99
- Deferred ux {413.96) (320.77)
‘T'otal tax expense 1,066.01 359.22
Net Profit After Tax 3.000.51 1.029.09
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassifled to profie or loss
Re-measurcoens gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (net) 31 (15.12) 12.47
Income tax impact 381 (341
[tenns that will be reclusaified te-prufit virloas
Net (loss) / gain on financial instrutement designaled at FVQC! 165.71 (22.07)
Income tax mpact (41 71) SR3
Other Comprehensive [ocome 112.69 (7.38)
Total comprebensive income 311320 1,021.711
Earnings per equity share (Face Value of INR, 10 cuch) £l
Baaic (¥} 19.46 736
Dilared (2) 3.87 1.46

In terms of our report attached
For Delvitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chantered Accourtants

c/‘
G. K. Subragmniam
Partner
Place: Mumb:i
Datc: Apri} 28, 2021

For und an behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Viveiti Capital Private Limited

Guuray Kumar
Managing Directos
NN 07767248

Shaik Mohammed Irfan Basha

Chicf Financia) Otficer

Place: Chennai
Date: April 28, 2021

V{V\‘-{/ CWW'W\ el

Vincel Sukumur
Managing Direelor
1IN NARAKRM

| B
1 A

Amritha Meitenkar
Company Sccretary
Membership No: A49121




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated atherwise)

Particulars Ycar onded Ycar cnded
Moarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Operating activitics
Profit before tax 4,066.52 1.388.31
Adjustments ta reconcile profit hefore tax 10 ner cash flows:
Depreciation & amortisation 680.38 665.85
Impairment on financial instruments including write off 2.989.74 96711
Interest on Lease liability 64.34 (275.40)
Net loss on finuncial assel designated at FYOCI - (7.38)
Share Based Payments lo employees 13840 72.67
Provision for Bonus 250.00 .
Provision for Gratuity 23.90 20.72
Provision for compensated absences 197.15 105.06
Openuting Profit before working anpitul chnnges nnd adjostmeats for Interest 8,410.43 2.936.94
reccived, Interest paid and Dividend received
Working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in loans (82,501.34) 37.711..17)
Decrease/{Increase) in trade receivables and contract asset 231.71 (93.33)
Decrease/(Increase) in olher non-financial assets (265.64) (16347)
{Decrease)/Increase in trade payables and contract liability 628.51 (350.02)
{Decrease)/Increase in other financial liability (722.81) 950.55
{Decrease)Increase in other non-financial liability 92.76 (110.99)
(Decrease)Increase in provisions ool) 44.59
Cash flows uscd in operating octivitics (74,126.39) (34,496.90)
fncome tix pad (1,603.30) (1,435.09)
Net cash fows (used in) operating activities {75.729.69) {35.931.99)
Interest paid (8,121.53) {5.959.66)
Interest received 16,058.77 11.086.09
Cash flows (rom operations 7.937.24 5,126.43
Investing activities
Investent in Bank Fixed Deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) 36,791.71 (46,303.51)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts (209.62) (256.58)
Intangible Assets Under Development (13.84) (15.45)
Purchase of investment at FVOCI (18,497.79) (2.807.10)
Investment in AIF (813.01) (100.00)
Net cash flows from/(uscd in) investing activitics 17,257.45 (49,482.64)
Financing activities
Debt sceurities issued (net) 9,506.86 11,318.77
Borrowings other than debt securities issued (net) 49,646.48 31.599.27
Proceeds from issuance of sharecapital 579.69 3,070.00
Procceds from sccuritics premium 2,332.53 38,470.75
Net cash flows from financing activities 69,065.56 84,458,79
Net increasce/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,593.33 (955.84)
Cash and cash equivalents at (he beginning of the year 3.224.31 4.180.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 3) 13,817.64 3,224.31
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

In currcot accounts 13,817.64 3.157.89
Cheques in hand - 66.42
Votal cash and cash equivalents 13,817.64 3,224.31




Vivriti Capfinl Private Lindted.
Standalatte Statement OF Cabb Flows For The Year Ended March 31, 2021
AN amounis are Uy Rupees likhs, nnlas stated oiharwiveh

Barrowings (ether than

Marticulsres Debt Securities dekitsocirition)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 30,446.55 47.218.16
Cashy Fleivs finet) 8.916.63 49,065.52
N Cash Changes (net) 30023 570.96
Balunce us at March 31, 2021 3995341 96.864.64
£, Cash flows arising on account of taxes od income dre not:speci ficily biturcated With respect to.investing & financmg activities

2 Previous Years figures Have heen regrouped; whereverncecssary lraonfirm o curcers: year's classification.

3. Figums in brackets represent outflaws,

I texvnn of ony eepart ntinghed: For aid on behnlf of the Hoard of Directors.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selix L1P Visriti Canital Private Libmited

Clumtered Accounsinis f - P4
e o Vinstd O e e
ZD‘),V. Gauray Kumar VincetSakimar

Manaying Direstor Managing Direaror
G. K. Subivardaniam DR (7767248 DIN-06248801
Pastnet |
Place: Murlfai S 'fl ' U -
WAW]!&M} - ! ; PARS
Shalk Mohommed Irfan Basks Amvyithy Paitenkar
ChisfFinanciil Officer Company Scerctary

Memberslip No: A49(4]

Plate: Chctinat
Date: April 28, 2021
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Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate Information

Vivriti Capital Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited Company domiciled in India and
incorporated on June 22, 2017 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company
is registered with the Reserve Bank Of India (‘RBI’) under Section 45 TA of the RBI Act, 1934 as Non-
Banking Finance Company (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) (NBFC-ND) with effect from January 5,
2018.

1.  Basis of preparation
1.1 Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended notified under Section 133 of the Act, other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 27,2021.
1.2 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity, are presented in the
format prescribed under Division 111 of Schedule IIT as amended from time to time, for Non-Banking
Financial Companies (NBFC') that are required to comply with Ind AS. The statement of cash flows has
been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—
current) is presented separately.

Financial assets and financial liability are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset
and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis.

1.3 Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakh (two decimals), unless otherwise
indicated

1.4 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain the financial
instruments that are measured at fair values.

A historical cost is a measure of value used in accounting in which the price of an asset on the balance
sheet is based on its nominal or original cost when acquired by the Company.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into fair value hierarchy based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:



Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.5

* Level | quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company
can access on measurement date.

« Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements

Information about judgements, estimates and assumptions made in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

a. [mpairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss ("ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a
number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies.

b. Fair Value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1

Revenue recognition
A. Interest Income

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, financial instrument measured at Fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) and financial instrument measured at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL’). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company
recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate
of return over the expected life of the financial instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is
subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'stage 3, the Company
calculates interest income on the net basis. If the financial asset cures and is no longer credit
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

B. Dividend Income
Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

C. Fees and commission income
Arranger fees are recognised after the performance obligation in the contract is fulfilled and
commission income such as guarantee commission, service income etc. are recognised on point in
time or over the period basis, as applicable

D. Other interest income
Other interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis

2.2 Financial instrument - initial recognition

A. Date of recognition

Debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets

and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument



Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

B.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured
at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL,
transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from this amount

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

o Amortised Cost

o FVOC!

o FVTPL

2.3 Financial assets and liabilities

A. Financial Assets

Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company's business model is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as
o How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the Company's key management personnel
o The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed
o How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)
o The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessment

Sole Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI test)

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
to identify whether they meet SPPI test. 'Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of financial asset (for
example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount). The most
significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the
time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPT assessment, the Company applies judgement
and considers relevant factors such as the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility
in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding.
In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Since, the loans and advances are held to sale and collect contractual cash flows, they are
measured at FVTOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at
FVTPL

Investment in subsidiaries and alternate investment funds

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost as per Ind AS 27 —
Separate Financial Statements.

B. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liability are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial liability, which are not at fair value through profit
or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method

2.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category
apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous
accounting period there was no change in the business model under which the Company holds financial
assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

2.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A. Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and condition

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognised as a de-recognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL. measurement
purposes.

Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the
statement of profit and loss as per Ind AS 109.

b. Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

2.6 Impairment of financial assets
A. Overview of expected credit loss (‘“ECL’) principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

o The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date); or

o Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument)

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described
below

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months
ECL. Stage 1 loans includes those loans where there is no significant credit risk observed.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the life time ECL.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days.
The Company records an allowance for life time ECL.

B. Calculation of ECLs
The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD: Probability of Default ("PD") is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not
been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD: Exposure at Default ("EAD") is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking
into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest

LGD: Loss Given Default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. [t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
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2.7

2.8

that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company has calculated PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of
loans and discounted at an approximation to the EIR. At every reporting date, the above calculated
PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed

C. Loans and advances measured at FVYOCI

The ECLs for loans and advances measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these
financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the
allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an
accumulated impairment amount with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss
recognised in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.

D. Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a forward looking macro parameters (GDP) and estimated
the impact on the default at a given point of time.

Write offs

Financial assets are written off when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to
be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition
to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are
credited to impairment on financial instruments in the statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Tn estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding
and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices
such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.
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2.9 Property plant and equipment

A. Recognition and measurement

2.10

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost
of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the Straight Line method, and is
generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule T of the
Act. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life
Computers and Accessories 3 Years

Leasehold Improvements 3 Years

Servers 6 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible
assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives using the Straight line method, and is included in depreciation and
amortisation in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life
Computers software 4 Years
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2.11

Employee benefits

A. Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plan and are
charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made and
when the services are rendered by the employees

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’).

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or *past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since
the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of such period,
the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for
such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase
this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized during the year when the employees render the
service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the
related service. The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as under:

o in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that

increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and
o in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur
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D. Stock based compensation

The grant date fair value of equity settled share based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is
based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the
vesting date.

2.12 Tncome tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

o temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

o temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
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entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

2.13 Leases

The Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration to assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ( “ROU) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will
be exercised.

ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

2.14 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the assct.
Other borrowings costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss account on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method.

2.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises current account balances and demand deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Segment reporting- Identification of segments
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
many earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions for which discrete financial
information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.
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2.17 Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings
Per Share. Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit / loss after tax attributable
to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed and disclosed by dividing the net profit/-
loss after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year after giving impact of dilutive potential
equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity
shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive

2.18 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non—cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the
Company are segregated.

2.19 Securities Premium Account
Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It can be used to issue bonus shares,
to provide for premium on redemption of shares and issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity
instruments.

2.20 Goods and Services Input Tax Credit
Goods and Services tax input credit is recognised for in the books in the period in which the supply of
goods or service received is recognised and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.

2.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised only when:
(i) The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
(ii) Tt is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and
(iii) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect
of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those
cash flows.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
(i) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; or
(i) A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.
Contingent Assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.22 Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid; and
¢) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in
the opinion of management.
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(ANl wnonnts are in Rupees lukhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 3. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(i) Balances with banks:
- In Current Accounts 13,817.64 3,157.89
(ii) Cheques on hand - 66.42
Total 13.817.64 3,224.31
Note 4. Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(i) In other Deposit accounts
- original Maturity less than 3 months* 728791 45,055.78
(ii) Earmarked balances with banks#
- Depuosits with Banks as Collateral 2,223.89 1,247.73
Total 9.511.80 46,303.51

*These deposils are earmarked against the bank overdraft availed by the Company stated in the note Note 15.

#Bulance with bunks in cartnurked deposit uccounts comprises depusits that huve an original muturity execeding 3 months as at balsuce sheet

date and earns interest at fixed rate ranging from 4% p.a to 8.3% p.a.

Note 5. Receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Unsecured - Considered Doubtful

Outstanding [or a period exceeding six months from the dale due for payment 141.55 7592

Less: Provision for impairment (141.55) (75.92)
Unsecured - Considered Good

Outstanding for a period less than six months* 438.01 708.83

Less: Provision for impairment (13.57) =
Total 424.44 708.83

*Includes Dues from reloted partics, refer note 34

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. The
above amount includes receivable from Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited amounting to Rs. 298.55 Lakhs, in which the directors of

the Company ase directors.



Note 6. Loans (At amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
A. Based on Nature
Term loans 1,60,308.18 82,241.70
Bills discounted 3,319.45 -
Loan to employees 36.97 46.27
Loan to ESOP trust 2750 -
Loans and advances to related parties - Subsidiary (refer note 34) - 900.00
Total - Gross 1,63,692.10 83,187.97
Less : Impairment loss allowance (1,647.18) (953.56)
Total - Net 1,62,044.92 82,234.41
B. Based on Security
a. Secured by tangible assets (including advances against book debts) 1,45,128.93 82,241.70
b. Unsecured 18,563.17 946.27
Total - Gross 1.63,692.10 83,187.97
Less : Impairment loss allowance 11,647.18) (933.56)
Total - Net 1,62,044.92 82,234.41
Total 1,62,044.92 82.234.41

Note: All loans are in India and are granted to individuals or entities other than public sectar.
The Company has provided Rs 30 lakh aguinst the moratorium interest income recognised and collected earlier in line with the recent

Supreme Court Judgement dated 23 March 2021 and RBI Circular 7 April 2021.
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Note 7. Investments

Particulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Investment in subsidiaries at cost (Unquoted)
-Vivriti Asset Management Prvate Limited 10, 000 Equity shares of INR 10 each
fully paid up (As at Murch 31, 2020: 1000 shares of INR 10 each) 2,751.00 1.00
-Credavenue Private Limited 10,000 CEquity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid up
(Incorporuted on August 21, 2020) 5,001.00
Tnvestments in Alternate investment fund - FVTPL
- Vivriti Samarth Bond Fund 99.49 100.00
- Vivriti Short Term Bond Fund 462.50 -
- Vivriti India Impact Bond Fund 351.02
Others - Unguoted - FVOCI
-Non Covertible Debentures 11,885.29 ¥,22591
-Pass Through Certificates 8,847.55 1,760.14
Total _ 29,397.8§ 10,087.05

All investments represented above are made in India




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(A1) amounts are in Rupees lakhs, inless stated atherwise)

Note 8. Others financial assets

Faxticulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31,2020
Security Deposits 255.42 193.83
Reveivable from assigned loans 12.00 -
Other Advances 30.16 51.07
Total 297.58 24490
Note 9. Current tax assets

Particulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Advance tax (net of provisions) - 1,061.27
Total - 1,061.27
Note 10. Deferrved tax assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Asset Liability
a) Provisions for employee benefit 8242 -
b) Deprecialion 52.96 -
¢) Prcliminary Expcnscs 2.15 -
d) Impairment of assets 573.86 B
e) Deferred lense asset 2322 -
f) Amortised Fees Income 300.36 =
g) Fair valuation on financial instruments - 23.73
Total 1.034.97 23.73
Net Deferred tax asset 1,011.24
Particulars As at March 31, 2020
Asset Liability

a) Provisions for employee benefit 46.80 -
b) Depreciation 21.15 *
¢} Preliminary Expenses 322 -
d) Impairment of assets 254.48
¢) Deferred lease assel 25.14 -
f) Amortised Fees Income 276.81 -
) Fair valuation on (inancial instruments 5.58 =
Total 633.18 -
Net Deferred tax asset g 633.18
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Vivtiti Capital Private Limited

Notey to the stondalone financial statements for the year ended Murch M, 2021

(Al ameants are i Rupees lakhs, undess siated vtherwise)

Note 12, Others nan financinl assets

Particulars As ar March 3L 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Prepuid Expenses ROTES 164,37
Advance fo vendors 133.69 4834
Balance with Government Authorities 134.18 42.76
Drilerred lease rentuly 26.88 0.99
Total 52210 256.46

Note 13, Trade Payables

Particalins As at March 31, 2021 | As 3t Mareh 31, 2020
Tolal ourstanding dues of micro enterprises and sinall enterprises * 172
Total vurstanding dues ot ceediors other than uucro enterprises and soxall 32113 19724
enferpnses
Acvrucd Eruployee Benefit Eapense 250.00 4.38
Total 1.072.85 201.62

“The mformation as requiced 10 he hscinsed nnder the Micrn, Smalt and Medium Falermises Development Act. 206 has been desermined ta the extent such
purties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company. The amouat of principal und interest outstanding dunog the year 1 given

belaw.
Particulors Ay at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2028
a) Amount austanding but not due as ar yvar end 1.72 -
by Amount duc but unpaid as at the year and -
) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year 0.50
d) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at year end - -
¢) The amount of further inlerest doe and payahle even in the succeeding ye - -
Note 14, Debt Seenrities (Mceasured at Amortised Cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2024
Redeemable Non-Uanvaruble Debennires Medium-Term - Seetred 395341 30.446.55
‘Total 39.953.41 30,446.58
Debt securities in India 39.953.41 30.444.55
Debt securities ouiside India - -
Total 39,953.41 30.446.55

14.1 Security

(1) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - Medium term is secured by way of exclusive charge over identified loan portfolio.
(i) The Company has not defsulied in the repayviment of dues 1o its lendors during tie custern or previous perivd
(i) Defails of repayment such as date of repayment. iTerest rafe and amounr (o be paid rave been disclosed in note 19.2 based oa the Commetual terms

busis.




14.2 Details of Debentures - Contractual principal repayment valne

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - Redeemable at ar - No put call aption

Debt Reference Remall,ing Dug dat’_: o Terms of repayment As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
maturity redemption
11.00% Vivriti Capital Private < | year 19-Mar-21 Principal is Quarterly payment - 19.616.15
Lymled - No put call oplion und  Interest  is  Monthly
payient
Market Linked Debentures - [ <1 year 27-Sep-20 Principal and interest is Bullet - 757.80
payment
1150 Viviti Capital Private < 1 year 16-Aug-21 Principal is Quarterly payment 1,004 46 3.016.01
Limited and Interest is  Monthly
payment
Market Linked Debentures - 11 < | year 13-Aug-21 Principal and interest is Bullet 603.04 542.51
payment
10.75% Vivin Capital Private 2-3 years 31-Jul-23 Principal and interest is Half] 2,500.25
Limited yearly payment
10.48% Vivnti Capetal Private 2-3 years 31-Jul-23 Principal is Quarterly payment 1.923.38 -
Limited and Interest is Monthly
pityment
Market Linked Debentures - 1M1 1-2 years 27-Nov-22 Principal and interest is Bullet 1.023.46
payment
10.00% Viviin Capital Private < | year 16-Jun-21 Principal is Quarterly payment 3.996.84
Limited and Interest is  Monthly
payment
10.25% Vivriti Copital Private 1-2 years 16-Jun-22 Principal is Quarterly payment 1,995.58 -
Limited and Interest is  Monthly|
payment
10.71% Vivritt Capital Private 1-2 years 05-Jul-22 Principal is bullet payment and 3,972.53
Limited interest is monthly payment
2,900, Viveiti Capital Private 1-2 ycars 25-Aug-22 Principal is monthly payment 7.500.00
Limited and inlerest in monthly payment
Secured Redeemahle Non-Converrible Debennires - Redeemable at par - With call oprion
Dcbt Reference l:‘::::::g lD:Ie dn‘f of Terms of repayment As nt March 31. 2021 | As at March 31,2020
12.96% Vivriti Capital Private 1-2 years 03-Mar-23 Priucipal is bullet payment and 2,541.54 2,517.92
Limited interest is monthly payment
12.12% Vivriti Capital Private 1-2 years 26-Aug-22 Principal is Bullet payment and 2,036.25 3,996.16
Limited Interest is Half yearly payment
10.57% Vivriti Cupital Private 2-3 years 10-Feb-24 Principal is Quarterly paymeni] 1.013.19 -
Limited and  Interest is  Monthly
payment
Market Linked Debentures - IV 1-2 years 29-Jul-22 Principal and interest is Bullet 4.947 58 -
payment
Market Linked Debentures - V 1-2 yeass 16-Oct-22 Principal and interest is Bullet 4,895.33 -

payment




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statcments for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AN amonnix are in Rupees laklis, unless stated otherwise)

Note 15. Borrowings (Other Than Debt Securities) - At amortised cost

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020

Secured
Term Loans from Banks (Refer note 15.1 and 15.2 below) SR,882.55 17.639.16
Term Loans from other partics

Financial institutions (Refer note 15.1 and 15.2 23,180.30 19,255.40

Securitisation {Collateralised debt obligation) (Refer note 15.3) 3,554.33 1,514.73
Loan Repayable on Demand

From Banks (Overdraft) (Refer note 15.1 (ii) below) 7.247.46 7,808.87

Working capilal demand loans from Bunks (Cush Credit) (Refer note 15.1 (iii) below) 4,000.00 1.000.00
Total (A) 96,864.64 47,218.16
Bomowings in India 96,864.64 47,218.16
Bomowings outside India -
Total (R) 96.864.64 47.218.16
15.1 Security

(i) Loans from banks and financial institutions arc secured by first making and exclusive charge over identificd receivables and guaranteed by

directors of the Company.

(i) Rate of interest payable on bank overdmft varics from 3.05% p.a to 3.4%% p.a (March 31, 2020: 4.5% p.a to 3.8% p.a). The Company has

taken bank overdrafl against the deposit balances, refer note 4
(iify Rate of interest payable on cash credit loans is 10.30% p.a. (March 31. 2020: 11% p.a.)

15.2 Detnils of term lonns - Contractual principal repayment value

Maturity Amount outstanding
Sateiofinisrest ’ 31-Mar-21 31 Mar20
6.37% to 12% < | year 4,816.17 5,082.55
1-2 years 21,031.96 14,906.95
2-3 years 11,02549 829.10
3-4 yeurs 7.362.32 -
Total 44,23593 20,818.60
Base rate / MCLR + Spread (.53% t0 .4.75%) < | year 534610 2,607.78
1-2 years 15,930.90 3,589.10
2-3 years 2,658.79 9.879.09
34 years 12,891.12 -
Tatal 3782692 16,075.97
15.3 Details of Securitisation
Rate of Interest Maturity Amount outstunding
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
11.25% <1 year 2,815.36 -
11.97% <1 year 738.97 903.35
1.7 years - 6113R
2-3 years - -
Total 3,554.33 1.514.73

Collateralised debt obligation represent amount received against term loans securitised. which does not qualify for derecognition. The Company

is expected 1o recover the same within a period of [ year.




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(ANl ameumis are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 16. Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Lenso Linbility 1,038.49 1,311.92
Payable to Customers 27.36 22,57
Amounts payable on assets derecognised 189.27 .
Payable to capital creditors 12.38 929.25
Tatal 1,267.50 2.263.74
Note 17. Provisions

Particulars As &t March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Provision on non-filnd exposure 30234 120.93
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity 18.08 3582
- Compensated Absences 5942 150.15
Provision for CCPS dividend - 0.01
Tatal 469.84 306.91
Note 18, Other non-financial linbilitics

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31,2020
Statutory Remittances 173.18 80.42
Total 173.18 80.42




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standaloue finaacial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 19a. Equity Share Capital

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 12020
AUTHORISED
1.59.00,000 (As at March 31, 2020: 1.59.00.0000 shares) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 1,590.00 1,590.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
1,56,41,010 (As at March 31, 2020: 1,44.89.600 shares) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.564.10 1.448.97
Less: Shares held under Vivriti ESOP Trust (417.71) (318.95)
1,146 39 1,130.02
Eguity Nharex
Az at March 31. 2021 Ag at March 31, 2020
Fasticulars Number Amennt Number Amount
As al the beginning of the year 144,389,700 1,44897 1.36.89,600 1.368.96
Issned during the year
Under Employee stock option (ESOP) scheme 11.51,310 115.13 8.00,000 80.00
Others 100 0.01
As al the end of the vear 1.56.41.010 1.564.10 1.44.80,700 1.448.07

Lguity shares hild by the trast

. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2(120
Particulars
Number Amount Number| Amount
As at lhe beginning of the year 31.89,500 318.95 23,89.500 238.95
1ssued during the year 9,87,560 98.76 8,00,000 80.00
As af the end of the year 41.77.060 417.71 31.89.500 318.95

Detafls of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company are given below:

Parteulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31. 2020
Number % Number| %
Vineet Sukumar 49.00,000 31% 49,00.000 34%
Gaurav Kumar 49.00.000 3% 49.00.000 3%
Vivriti ESOP Trust 41.77.060 27% 31.89.500 22%

As per records of the Company. including its register of shareholders/memnbers and other declarntions received from shareholders regarding beneficial mterest. the asbove
shurehulding represents buth begul und bensliciul vwuership ol shures.

Termy/Rights uttuched to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's rexitual assets. The
equity shanes are entitled 10 receive dividend as declared from Lime to tine: subject o payment of dividend to preference shareholders. Dividend propoged by the board of
directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interimn dividend.

In the event of liguidation of the Cormpany, the holders of equity shares will be entiled to receive remaining assets of the Compaay, afler distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion (o the nuniber vf equity shares held by the sharchoklers.



Note 19 b, Convertible Non-participnting Preference Share Cuapital

Asut March 31,
THY . : 9 k]
Purticulurs As at March 31, 2021 2020
AUTIIORISED
8.34.37,063 (As at March 31, 2020: 78,348,035) Compulsorily Converiible Preference Sharcs of Rs. 10 cach 8.34371 7.834 80
850,000 (As at March 31. 2020: 850,000 <harcs) Optionally Convertible Redecmable Prefercnce Shates of Rs. 510.00 510.00
60 each
8,853.71 8.344.80
sU A WLLY PAID U
2,24.20,634 (As at March 31, 2020: 7,76,23,608) 0.001% Compulsorily Convenihle Preterence Shares of Rs. 8,342.06 1.762.37
10 cach
ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED AND PARTIALLY PAID UP
8.11.402 of Re, | cach paid up (As at Narch 31, 2020: 8.11.402 of Re.l each paid up) Optionally Convatible g1 8.1
Redeemable Preference shares
8.3580.17 7.770.18
Compulsority Converiible Redvemable Prefervace Shures
Purticulnes As at Murch 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
Number| Amount Number Amount
As at the beginning ol the wear 7.76.21,698 7.762,37 4,70,04.932 4,700.49
Issued during the year 57.96.936 579.69 3,06.18.766 3.061.88
As al the end of the vear ¥.34.20.634 8.342.06 1.76.23.698 2.762.37
Oprioually Convertible Redeemunble Prcfercnce Shares
Purticuturs As at Murdh 31, 2021 As ut Manh 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amaount
As at ihe beginning ol the year 811,402 811
Issued during the year - - 811,402 8.1
As alt)ie end af the vear 8.11.402 811 R.11.402 8.1
Detnils of preference sharcholders holding
Puiticulurs As ot March 31. 2021 As ot Mareh 31, 2020
Numbor| % Number, Y%
Ceeation Investiments LLC 6.32.66.409 6% 5.74.69.473 74%%
Lightruck Growth Fund [5.A (Formerly known as Lightstone Lund SA} 1.00.77.1 12 12% 2,01,54,225 26%
Financial Investiments SPC (affiliate of Lightrock Growth Fund U S A, .
SICAV-RAIF) 1.00.77.113 12% .

Notes:

During the ycar ended, the Company has issued 57,96,936, 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shaces ("CCPS*) of face value Rs. 10/- aggregating Rs. 579 69

Lakhs which aro convertible inta equity shares ot the option of CCPS bioldor during the conversicn petiod

Conversion of CCPS into wyuity shares will be as per the respeciive sharehelders agraemwent and are treated pari-passu with equity shures on all voting rights. The CCPS if
not converted by the preitrence sharcholders shall be compulsorily convented into oyity shares upon any of the following cvents:
a. In connection with an [P®, immediately prior to the filing of red hierring prospectus (or equivalent docunient. by whatever name called) with the competent authority or

such later date as may be peanitted under applicable low at the relevant time; and

h. Ry delrvering a Conversion Notice al any time during the relevant Converainn Periad as per the rexpective shareholders ageement

The (7CPS holders huve a nght to receive dividend, prior 10 the Equity shareholders nnd will be cvtutlative if preference divicend is not declared or paid ju any year, The
Copony bios bifurcared Equity and liobility component on CCPS and shown entire convorsion portion ns Equity obove and coupon on CCPS as liability under provisien.

Lighistone Fund SA has changed its name 1o Lightrock Growth Fund [ S.A,, SICAV-RAIF, with eilective troin Morch 9, 2021,



Vivriti Capital Private Limited

Noles to the standal fi inl stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

All amounts arc m Rupees lakhs, unless stated othenrvise)

Note 20. Other equlty

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Statutory Reserve |
Balance at the beginning of the year 24238 36.56
Add: Transfer from retained earnings 600.10 205.82
Balancc at the cad of the year 842,48 242.38
Securitics Premium

Balance nt the beginning of the year 56.753.60 18.282.85
Add : Premium reccived on shares issucd during the year 11,371.50 39,931.41
Less : Utilised during the year for writing off share issue expenses (154.73) {967.30)
Less : Amount recoverable from Vivriti ESOP Trust (1,873.12) (493.36)
Balance at the end of the year 66,097.25 56,753.60
Employee Stock Oplion Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 8446 11.79
Add: Stack compensation expense duning the year 138.40 72.67
Add: Recoverable from subsidiaries 176 85 -
Balunce at the ead of the year 39.71 84.46
Other Comprchensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year 4.67 (4.39)
Add (Less) : Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (1131 9.06
Less: Transfer to cetained eamings 6.65 =
Addr (Less) : Fairvaluation of investment in debt instruments (nct) 124.00 (16.44)
Add: Transfer from retained eamings pertaining to prior years 11.47 16.44
Balance at the end of the year 135.47 4.67
Retalned earnings

Balance a1 the beginaing of the year 360.42 (446.40)
Add : Prulit/ (Loss) fur (he year 3,000.51 1,029.09
Add/ (less) : Transfer from other comprehensive income (6.65) (16.44)
Add/ (kcss) : Transfer to other comprchensive income (11.47)

Less: Transfer to Statutory reserve (600.10) (205.82)
Less: Preference Dividend for CCPS . (0.01)
Balance at the cud of the year 2,721 360.42
TOTAL 70217.61 57.445.53

Reserve w/s, 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of Indin Act, 1934 ("the RBI Act, 1934")

Reserve ws 45-1A of RBI Act, 1934 is created in aceordance with section 45 [C(1) of the RBI1 Act, 1934 As per Section 45 IC(2) of \he RB} Act, 1934, no
appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except for the purpose as may be specified by RBI

Securlties premium

Securities premium is used o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be wiilised only for limiled purposes such as issue bonus shares, to provide
tor premuum on redemplion ol shares or debentures, wite-oft’ equity related expenses bike underwritng costs, etc m accordance with the provisions ol the

Companies Adt, 2013.

Employee stock option reserves

The Company has stock option schemes under which options 10 subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granred 1o eligl ploy

liolh! 1

personnel. The share-hased payment reserve 1s used to recognise the value ot equity-settled share-based paymenis

Other comprehensive income

es and key 1ent

1. The Corpany has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the

FVOCI - loans and advances reserve within equity.

b. Remeasurcment of the net defined benefit liabilities comprisc actuarial gain or loss, return on plan assets exchuding intercst and the effect of asset ceiling, if any.

Retained earnings

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated availabie profit of the Company carried forward from earlier years. This reserve is free reserves which

can be utilised for any purpose as may be required



Yivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the Jal fMnnpelal

Note 21. Interest lucome

s for the year ended Murch 31, 2021
(AU amovunts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated othenrvise)

Year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars On Financial Assets On Financial Assets
iy classified at FVOCI !
at Amortised Cost
Inferest vn Loans 17,192.40 - 17,192.40
Interest income (Tom investments 1,785.62 517.10 2302.72
Interest un depnsits 629.14 - 629.14
Total 19.607.16 517.10 20.124.26
Year Ended March 31, 2020
Particulars On Financial Assets On Financial Assets .
measured classified at FVOCI Total
at Amortised Cost

Interest on Loans 9,764.92 - 9.764.92
Interest income from investments 1,242.50 249.89 1.492.39
Interest on Inter Corporate deposits 2.26 - 226
Interest on deposits 94.26 - 94.26
Total 11.103.94 249.89 11353.R3
Note 22. Fees and commission Income
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year Ended March

2021 31, 2020
Fee and Commission Income 1,728.03 3.407.61
Totul 1.728.03 3.407.61
Note 23, Net gain on fuir vslue chunge oa finnncial instruments
Particulars Ycar cnded March 31,| Ycar Endcd March

2021 31, 2020
Net pain un fair value changes 73.90 12.74
Total 73.90 12.74
Naote 24. Other Income
Particulars Year cnded March 31, Year Ended March

2021 31, 2020
Interest on Rental Deposit 12.43 10.54
Rental income ( refer note 34 ) 171.10 4.66
Interest on IT Refund 1143 -
Liabilitics no longer required written back - 2636
Reimbursement of expenses ( refer note 34 ) 379.09 0.02
Total 574.08 41.58




Vivriti Capital Private Limitcd

Notes to the Jalune financial st

Note 25. Finance costs

nts (or the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Yeur Eaded March 31,
2021 2020
[nterest on borrowings 504542 2.442.78
[uterest on Bank Overdiaft 164.56 19.02
Interest on debt secunties 3371.59 358309
Finance cost on Rental Deposit 11.98 10.26
Interest on discountme of financial instrutments 135.67 172.60
Total 9,435.22 6,227.75
Note 26. Impairment on financial instruments
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount written ofl Total
Loans - measured at cost 486.12 96.55 950.51 1.533.18
Investments - measured at FVYOCT and FVTPL 53.05 - - 389.86 442,91
Financial guarantee 129.84 - 262.50 542 934.45
Trade receivahles 7920 - - - 79.20
Total 748.21 - 359.05 1.882.48 2,989.74
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 | Stage 3 Totsl
Loans - measured at cost 275.06 495.97 771.03
[nvestments - measured at FVOCI 0.43 - - 043
Financial guarantee 119.73 - - 119.73
Trade receivables 75.92 | - 75.92
Total 471.14 - 49597 9267.11
Note 27. Employec benefit expense
Particalars | Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
| 2021 2020
Salaries and Bonus | 342399 3,396.50
Contribution to provident and other tunds $0.04 96.71
Staff Traning and Welfare Fxpenses 17.72 79.02
Gratuity expenses 8.78 20.72
Share Based Payments to employees 138.40 72.67
Total | 3,668.93 3,665.62
Note 28. Deprecistion and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2021 2020
Depreciation and amortisation expense 680.38 665.85
Total 680.38 665.85




Note 29. Other expenses

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Administrative Expenses 6.82 6.18
Advertisment Expenses - 21.50
Auditor's Remuneration (refer note 29.1) 44,65 35.03
Communication Expenses 49.83 3585
Director Sitting Fees 26.16 19.00
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 29.2) 10.94 -
Insurance 93.16 46.79
Maintenances of Premises 181.62 180 80
Other Expenses 173.05 15534
Professional Fees 52393 308.25
Rates and Taxes 20.71 190 42
Recruitment related Fees 47.71 308.75
Subscription expenses 7.98 7.34
IT Cost 37543 251.76
Travelling Expenses 109.46 292.47
Investor meet Expenses - 41.64
Total 1,671.45 1,901.12
Note 29.1: Auditor's Remuneration

As auditor Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,

2021 2020

Statutory audit 22.00 14.00
Tax audit 2.00 10.50
Other services 20.65 10.53
Total 44.65 35.03

Note 29.2: Details of CSR expenditure

As auditor Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Gross amount required to be spent towards CSR w/s 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 10.94 d

Gross amount spent during the year

a) Construction / acquisiton of asset . -

b) Others 8.11 =

Note 30. Income Tax

The components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are:

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Current tax 148197 666.93

Deferred tax relating (o origination and reversal of temporary differences (415.96) (320.77)

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years = 13.06

Total Tax charge 1,066.01 359.22

During the previous year, the promulgated Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 has inserted section 113BBA in the Income Tax Act.
1961 providing existing domestic companies with an option to pay tax at a concessional rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess. The
Company has irreversibly opted for the new tax rate i.e. 25.17%.



30.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge thar would apply if all profits had been charged ar India

corporate tax rate. A reconciliation bety the tax and the ac

31, 2021 and 2020 are, as follows:

L

ing profil multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years Masch

Particulars Year ended March 31. | Yenr Ended Mnrch 31,

) 2021 2020
Accounting profit before tax 4,066.52 1.388.31
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2020: 25.17%) 1,023.54 349.44
Adjustmcent in respect of current incomge tax of prior years - 13.06
Effect of enacted tax rate on Deferred tax - (3.28)
Others ( On account of transfer of assets and liahilities ) 4247 -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,066.01 35922
The effective income tax rate for March 31, 2021 26.21% is (March 31, 2020: 25.87%).
Nate 31, Earnings Per Shaie

N | Yecar ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,

Esriicalies ' 2021 2020
Profit after tax 3,000.51 1,029.09
Weighted average number of equity sharss (Basic) | 1.54,20.211 1.39.89.878
Add: Dilutive effect relating to convertible shares [ 6.85,64.356 5,62,95.642
Eamingy per share - Basic INR 19.46 7.36
Eamings per share - Diluted INR 3.57 1.46
Face value per share INR 10.00 10.00

Note:
Eamings per Share calculations are done in accordance with Ind A5 33 “Earnings per Share™.

Note 32. Retirement Benefit

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which
is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as ar expenses in the statement of profit and loss during the period in
which the cmployee enders the related service,

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimaling the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their services in the cusrent and prior periods; that benefif is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past services and the fair vatue of any plan assets are deducted. The Calculation of the
Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit ncthod.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the following risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate, which is finked to the Govemment Securities rate, will increase the present value of the limbility
requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of assct.

Salary Risk: I'he present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reterence to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase
in the salary of the members more than assumed level may increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Liability is calculated using a discount mtc which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of (he reporting period on govemmgent bonds.

If the return on plan asset is below this rate. it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively halanced mix of
mvestments in government securties, and other debt instruments.



Asset Liability Matching (ALM) Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk s to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of

Income Tax Rules, 1362, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only. plan does not have any longevity

rish.
Yeur ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
Farticulars 2021 2020
Defined Bene[it Obiigution ut the beginning of the year 35.82 2757
Service cost 6.25 18.85
Interest cost 253 1.87
Acquisitions’Divestures/Transfer {41.63)
Return on plan asscts (cxcluding amounts included in net interest cxpensc) -
Acmarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 15.6% 8.49
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.57) (32.13)
Experience adjustments . 11.17
Contributions by employer - -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the vear | 18.08 35.82
Fair Value of Plan Asscts as at the End of the Ycar - .
Defined benefit obligation at the Eud of the Year 18.08 35.82
Amonnt Recognised in the Balance Sheet under Provisions 18.08 3582
Cost of the Defined Benefit Plan for the Year
Current Service Cost 6.25 18.85
Ner inrerest Expense 253 1.87
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Net Cost recognized in the statement of Profit and Foss 8.78 20.72
Re-meusurement Losses/(Guins)
a) Effect of changes in financial assumptions (0.57) (32.13)
b) Effect of expericnce adjustments - 1117
¢) Effect of ch in demographic assuniptions 15.69 3.49
Net cost recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 15.12 (1247)
Assumptions
Discount rate 6.79% 6.79%
Future salary increase 3.00% 3.00%
Attirtion Rate 5.00% 10.00%
Mortality 0.9 - 3.82% 1-3.75%
Senstivily analysis
—::n:iﬁ\ﬁr;sl vel | As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Impact on defined bencfit obligation (in ¥) |
1) Discount Rate |
% increase t (191 (5.02)
1% decrease ' 226 6.19
2) Future Salary Iucreases I
1% increase [ 223 628
1% decrease | (1.91) (5.14)
3) Employcc Tumover
1% increase | 032 0.81
1% decrease | {0.43) (L17)




Misturity Analysis of benefic payments

Particulars As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31,2020
Within (he uext 12 wonths (next annual reporiing period) 0.04 0.09
Between 2 and $ years 0.04 0.37
Between 6 and 10 years 0.04 048
Beyond 10 vears 17.96 34.88
Total expected pavients 18.08 35.81

Notes:
The estimate af funire salary increace takes intn acconnt inflatian, seniarity, pmmation and ather relevant factare: Diceotmt rate is hased on the
prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident
Fund and Gratuity. ‘The Ministry of Labour and Employment hos released draft rules for the Code on Social Sccurity, 2020 on November 13, 2020,
and has invited suggestions from slakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Conmpany will assess the impact and its
evaluation once the subject rules arc potified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 31, Segunent Information
The Company has been operating only in one segment viz, financing aclivities and the operations being only in [ndia, the disclosure requirements
of Ind AS 108 is not applivable.

Note 34. Related Party information
List of related parties where control exists

Subsidiary Companics Vivriti Assct Management Privatc Limited
Creduvenue Private Linited (Incorporated on August
21, 2020)

Key Management Personnel M. Vineer Sukupsar, M.u:m:in{[)imctm N

Mr, Gauray Kumar, Managing Director
Mr. John Tvler Dav, Nominee Director

Mr Kenneth Dan Vander Weele, Nomunee Director
Me Nomeata Kol Independent Director

Mr. Kartik Srivatsa, N Ihrector (app
on May 30, 2020

My Sndbiar Srimvasag, Independent Director
(resigned on August 28, 2020)

Mr. Vineet Sukumar. Managing 1. Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited
Director 2. Credavenue Private Limited

ted

Entity in which KMP 1s a Director

Mr. Gaurav Kumar, Managing Director [ 1. Vivriti Assct Managernent Private Limited
3. Credavenue Private Limited




4) Tnm:ucﬂugs with velated partics

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Interest Income
Vivriti Assct Management Private Limited 201.65 275
Rent income
Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited 248 166
Credavenue Private 1imited 168.62
Reimbursement of expenses
Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited 3.36 160.92
Credavenue Private Limited 374.62 -
Platform fees cxpense:
Crodavenue Private Limited 396.84 -
Sale of fixed assets
Credavenue Privale Limited 159.95 -
Transfcr of Provision for Employce Benefits
Credavenue Privale Limited 329.51 -
Employee shure optivn recoverable
Credavenue Private Limited 160.60 -
Fees and commission income:
Vivriti Assct Manngemcent Private Limited 1145 -
Credavenue Private Limited 69.71
Loan Given
Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited 500.00 900.00
Loans repaid
Vivrili Asset Management Private Limited 1,400.00
Equity contribution
Vivriu Assel Matageruent Private Limited 2,750.00 100
Credavenue Private Limnited 5,001.00 -
Remuancration paid
Mr. Vineet Sukumar 194.69 137.50
Mr. Gaurav Kumar 194.69 137.50
Directors Sitting fees
M. Sridhar Srinivasan 8.25 8.00
Ms. Namrata Kaul 13.80 11.00
b) Ba ©s Wil nted parties

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Loan outstanding
Vivriri Asset Management Private Timited - 900 00
Intercst accrued but not due on loan
Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited - 275
Trade payables
Credavenuc Private Limited 131.09
Trade receivables
Vivriti Asset Management Private Limited 298.56 16092

Notes:

1. There are no provision for doubtful debts’ advances or amounts written off or written back for debts due from/ due to related parties.

2. The transactions discloscd abave arc exchusive of GST.



Note 35. Contingent Liabilitics and Commitments

a) Contingent liabilitics

| Partlculars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
| Guarantees issued to third party 4,946.13 7,807 02
by

Particulars 31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20
Capila} vosmunitiuents 98.83 18.53
Undrawn committed sanctions to borrowers 325.00 -
<) Pending Litigation

Particulars 31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20
Beil Finvest India Limited 592.52 592.52

Note 36. ESOP Disclosure

The Company constituted the Vivriti ESOP Trust (the Trust) to administer the Employee Stock Options (ESOP) schemc and allotted 15.19.000
(March 31, 2020: 16,57.000) equity shares 1o Trust. The Trust has granted 15,19.000 (March 31, 2020: 16,57,000) options under the Employee
Stock Option Scheme to employees spread over a vesting period of 2 to 5 years. The details of which are as follows;

Flan Grant date No. of Options (i;f:ﬁl:teiir:::.) Vesting Period
Scheme | 30-Jun-18 16,79.500 10.00 2to 5 years
Scheme 2 19-Jul-19 6,97.500 47.48 1to § years
Scheme 3 18-Nov-19 9.09,500 7167 1105 years
Scheme 4 15-Dec-19 50,000 71.67 1ta 5 years
Scheme 5 30-Jun 20 11.39,000 173.66 4 Years
Scheme 6 30-Scp-20 150,000 173.66 4 Years
Scheme 7 i1-Deec-20 2.30,000 173.66 4 Years
Veating Condition . Thne based vexting (for alf schemes)
Reconclliation of ontstanding options Number of Options
As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31,2020
Ouistanding at beginning of the yeu 29,05,900 16,79,500
Forfited during (he year (3,14,500) (3,47.000)
Exercised dunng the year (1,26,650) (83.600)
Ciraoted during tle vau 15,19,000 16,57.000
Custanding at the end of the year 39,83,750 29.05,900
Vested and exercisable os at end of the year 3.50.375

The fair value of the options is estimated on tha date of the grant using the Blick-Scholes opti

on pricing model with the following assumptions:

Particular

As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31,2020
Dividend Yield* - -
Expected Life 2 - 6 years 3 -6 years
Risk free inferest rate 4.09%- 8.32% 5.56% 8.32%
Volatility* 14.70%6- 31.75% 14.70%- 18 82%

= Campany has not paid any dividend till date,

** Company is a unlisted entity and having no listed peer companies, so volatility of BSE Finance Index for the historical period as per the time to

maturity in each vesting has been considered.




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the dajone fi ial

Note 37

for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al anmgumts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

During the current year. (he Company has formed its wholly-owned subsidiary Credavenue Private Limited as on August 21, 2020 and has trapsferrod certain fixed assots,

cmployees and reluted linbilitics.

Note 38. Events after reporting dute

There have been no event after the reporting date that require di

Note 39. Frir Value Measurements

in the fi

Valuation Principles : Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tramsaction in the principal (or most

advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions i.e, exit price. This is regardless of whether that price is directly observable or d wsing
a valuation technique
Financial {imtrument by category
The canying value and fair vatue of (inancial insinunents measured at fair volue as of March 31, 2021 were as follows
. Carrying Value Kair Value
Farticulars EVIPL FVOCT Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment in Non Convertible Debenhires - 11,8R529 - 11.885 29 - 11,885 29
Investment in Pass Through Securities = 8,847.55 - 8.847.55 - 8,847.55
In in All ta I | Fund 913.01 - - - 913.01 913.01
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value as of March 31, 2020 were as follows
. Carrying Value Fair Value
Farticalars FVTPL FVOCI Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Investment in Non Convertible Debentures - 8,22591 - £,225.91 - 8,22591
Investment 1n Pass lhrough Securities - 1.760.14 - 1.760.14 - 1,760.14
In in Al In Fund 1100 - - - 100.00 100.00
Reconciliation of fair valuc eiment is as follows:
Particalars For the Yeay Ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Fi lal [nser ed at FVOC]
Ralance at the beginning of the year 1147 27.91
Total loss measured through OCI 124 00 (16.44)
Balonve at the end of the your 135.47 11.47
Notz - Above balances are nct of taxes
Sensitivity Analvals - Increase / Decrease by 1%
Particulars As al March 31, 2021 As at March 31. 2020
1 Decrease Incrense Decrease
Investment 1n Non Convertible Debentures (93.00) 194.63 (268.07) 202,26
Investment in Pass Through Securities (2.72) 95,63 0.58 32,44
Investment in Altemate Investmeat Fund 17.43 §.42 (1.00) L.00




Vivritl Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone finsncial statenents for the year ended March 31, 2021
(A1 umeunts are in Rupres lukhs, unless stared etherwiser

The carrying vahuc and fair value of other financin! instruments by cotegories as of March 31, 2021 were ns follows:

Particulars Carry Value Fair Value
Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fi ial ussets not cd at fair value
Cash and cash equivalenls 1381764 - 1381764 - 13817 64
Dauk Dalaoces othie: i above 9,511.80 - 9511.80 - 9,511.80
Recetvables 42444 - - 4244 424.44
Loans 1.62,04+4.92 B - 1,49,935.80 1,49.935.80
Investment 7,752.00 - - 7.752.00 -
Orher financial asseis 30.16 20.16 3016

Finuncial Liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade payables . 1,072.85 - - 1.072.85 1,072.85
Dbt Securities 39,953.41 - - 39.953.41 39,953.41
Borrowings ((ther than Debt Secunties) 96.864 .64 - - 96,864.64 96.864.64
(Other finanrial liabilities 1.267 50 - - 1,267 50 1.267 50

The camying value and fair value of other financial instruments by catepories as of March 31, 2020 wers as fillows:

Particulars Carry Value Fair Value
Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal assets not mensured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 49.468.71 - 49,468.71 - 49,468.71
Bank Balunces othes than above 59.11 - 3911 - 59.11
Receivibles 701.40 - - 701.40 701.40
Loans 82.215.04 - - 75.528.47 75.528.47
[rvestisent 1.00 - - 100 -
Crher finuncial usses 228.33 - - 228,23 228.33

Financial Liabilities not measured ar fair valoe

Trade payables 201.62 - - 201.62 201.62
Disbt Sceunties 30,416.55 20,416.55 30,116.55
[oerowanigs (Other than Debt Scountiegs) 17,218.16 +7,218.16 47,218.16
Crbier financnal bobilivies 951.82 - - 951.82 951.82

Level 1z Level | hierarchy includes linancial instruments measured usig quoted pnces. Itus inchudes bsted 2quity mstrumencs. traded bonds and mutual funds that have
quoied price. The lur value of alf equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period
The mutual funds arc valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fuir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (or example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) 1s determuned using valuation
techniques which maximisc the use of obscrvable market data and rely as little as passible on entity-specilic cstimates, I al! sigaificant inpuls required to fair value an
instrumenl ane observable, 1he instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If ane or more of the sigmficant inputs is not based on observable market data. the instnupent is included in level 3. This is he case for unlistzd equily securities.
conlingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3

The carrying amounts o7 trade receivabies, trackz payahles, capital ereditnrs and cash and cash equivalents are considered o be the same as their tair values, due to thew short-
term nature

The Company lend tern [oans al fixed & floaling rates and the fair valuation is disclased above.
For financial assets and liabililies that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

There has been no wransfers berween lavel 1, level 2 and Jevel 3 for the year ended March 31, 221 aad 2020. The fair value of a finaacial instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price (Fur value of the consideration given or received). Subseq to :mtial recogmtion, the Company determunes the far value of tinancil
instruments 1hat are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid prices (financial sssets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liebilities held) and using valuntion techniques
for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method. markel comparable method. recent transactions happened in the company and other
valuation models.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity invesiments in Subsidiaries, ete.) at fair value,

T'he Compuny uscs veluation techniques thot arc appropriate m the circumnstances ond for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the wse of unebscivable imputs.



Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the ycar ended March 31. 2021
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 40. Capital Management

The Compainy mainlains an actively managed capital base (o cover risks inherent in (e business and is mecting the capital adequacy
requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) of India. The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored
using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

The Company has camplied in full with all its externally impased capital requirements aver the reported perind.

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complics with cxtemally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strang credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order ta support its business and to maximise shareholder value

The company monitors capital using adjusted net debl (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio.

Particuurs As at March 31, 2021 |As at March 31, 2020

Gross Debt 1,36,818.05 77.664.71
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 13,817.64 3,224.31
Adjusted debt 1,23,000.41 74,440.40
Total Equity 79,714.17 66,346.03
Adijusted debt eqguily rulio 1.54 1.12

In order to achieve this averall ohjective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in financial covenants
would pennit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings

The Company manages its capital suucture and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
sharcholders, refurn capital to sharcholders or issuc capital securitics. No changes have heen made to the objectives, palicies and processes
from the previcus yoars. Howcever, they arc under constant review by the Board,

40.1 Regulatory capital

Particulars J1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Tier I capital 77,860.24 65.436.98
Tier I capital 1.189.70 353.85
Total Caplital 79,049.94 65,790.83
Risk weighted assets 1,96,087.45 1,02,031.29
Capital 10 Risk Weighted Asset Ration{(CRAR) - Tier | 39.71% 64.13%
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ration(CRAR) - Tier Il 0.61% 0.35%
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ration(CRAR) - Total 40.31% 64.48%

40.2 Risk Management

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Cowmpany's activities, it is managed through an integrated risk
managemen| framework, 1ncluding ongoing identification, measurement and monitonng, subject to risk hmurs and other controls. This process
of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to
various operating and business risks.

40.2.1 Risk Management structure
The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategics and
principles.

The Board lias appointed the Supervisory Board which is responsible for monitoring the overall risk process within the Company and reports
to the Audit Committee.




Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

The Risk Commiltee has the overall responsibility tor the development ot the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies
and limits. The Risk Cotnmittce is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to the Supervisory Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent control process
is maintained. The unit works closcly with and reports to the Risk Committee, lo cnsure that procedures arc compliant with the overall
frtamework

The Risk Contralling Unit is responsible tfor monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Company. Each
business Company has its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including menitoring the actual risk of exposures agninst
authorised limils and the asscssment of risks of new products and structured transactions. It is the Company's policy that this unit also ensures
the complere capture of the risks in its risk measurement and reporting systems. The Company's policy also requires that exceptians are
reported on a daily basis, where necessary, to the Risk Cornmitiee, and the relevant actions are taken to address exceptions and any areas of’
weakness.

Lhe Company's Lreasury is responsible for managing its asscts and labilites and the overall tinancial structurc. It is also primarily
responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

The Company’s policy is that risk managsment processes throughout the Company are audited annually by the Internal Audit function, which
examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Company's compliance with the procedures. Intemal Audit discusses the results of all
assessmenls with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Supervisory Board and Audit Committee.

The company has put in place a robust risk management framework to promete a proactive approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving
risks associated with the business. Given the nature of the business, the company is engaged in. the risk tramework recognizes that there is
uncerfainty in creating and sustaining value as well as in identifying opportunities. Risk management is therefore made an integral part of the
company's cficctive management practice.

40.2.2 Risk Measuroment and re¢porting systoms

The Company’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely Lo arise in normal circumsiances and unexpected
losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of probabilities derived from
historical experience. adjusted to reflect the economic environment. The Company also runs worst-case scenarios that would arise in the event
that extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and contralling risks is primarily performed hased on limits estahlished by the Company. These limits reflect the business sirategy
and market environment of the Company as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on
selected industries. In addition, the Company’s policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk-bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate
risk exposurc across all risk rypes and activitics,

Iuformation compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse, control and identify risks on a timely basis. This
infonmution is presented and expluived to the Board of Directors, the Risk Comunitiee, and the head of each business division. The report
includes nggregate credit exposure, credit metric forecasts, hold limit exceptions, VaR, liquidity ratios and risk profile changes. On a monthly
basis, detailed reporting of industry, customer and geogmphic risks takes place. Senior management assesses the appropriateness of the
allowance for credit losses on a monthly basis. The Supervisory Roard receives a comprehensive risk report once a quarter which is designed
to provide all the necessary information to assess and conclude on the risks of the Company.

At all levels of the Company's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business
divisions bave access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

It is the Company’s policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant members of the Company on the
utilisation of markct limits. analysis of VaR, proprictary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk develapments.

Stress testing iz a fundamental pillar of the Company’s risk management toolkit, to simulate various economic stress scenarios 1o help the
Company set and monitor risk appetite and 1o ensure that the Company maintains a conservative risk profile. The outcome of tests is
embedded into the individual credit. liquidity and funding, risk profiles through limits and mitigation contingency plans and includes both
financial and regulatory measures

It is the Company's policy to cnsure that a robust risk awarencss is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employces arc expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to that they decide to take on. The Company's continuous training and
development anphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetitc and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company’s risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit
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40.3 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.
The Compuny manages and conirols credit risk by setting limits on ihe amount of risk it is willing 10 accept for individual counterparties and
for geographical and industry concentrations, and by menitoring exposures in refation to such limits.

Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk depaciment of the Company's independent Risk Controlling Unit. It is their responsibility to review
and manage credit risk, including environmental and social risk for all types of counrerparties. Credit risk consists of line credit risk managers
who are responsible for their business lines and manage specific portfolios and experts who support both the line credit risk manager, as well
as the business with tools like credit risk systems, policies, models and reporting.

The Company has esiablished a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of
counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the use of a credit risk classification system,
which assigns cach counterparty a risk rating, Risk ratings arc subject to regular revision. The credit quality review process aims to allow the
Company 1o assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

40.3.1 Impairment assessment
The references below show where the Company’s impairinent assessment and measusernent approach is sct out in this report. It should be read
in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting palicies.

Grouping

As per Ind AS 109, the Company is required to group the portfolio based on the shared risk characteristics. The Company has assessed the
risk and its impact on the various porttolios and has divided the porttolio into lollowing groups namely Loans, investments in pass through
securifiey, investment in non-convertible debenturey, colending and partial guarantees towards pooled bond & loan issuances.

Expected Credit Loss(*ECL™)

ECL on financial assets is an unbiased probability weighted amount based out of possible outcomes after considering risk of credit loss even if
probity is low. ECL is calculated based on the following components: a. Marginal probability of default ("MPD™) b. Loss given defaul
("LGD") ¢. Exposure at default ("EAD") d. Discount factor {*D")

Expected Credit Losscs are measured via a combination of Monte Carlo Simulations across three major cohorts of exposure and the losses
across these three cohons are then added and loss distribution is used to arrive at Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

* 12 month expected credit losses (basis defaults in Monte Carlo simulation) across the financial instruments on Stage | assets

» Lifetime expected credit losses (basis defaults in Monte Carlo simulation) across the financial instruments which have cither become NPA
(Stage I or have displayed significant increase in credit risk (Stage II aseets)

« Partial Guarantee product losses wherein a partial guarantee iz extended to a pool of issuers- in this case; the zntire EAT of all the issuances
is considered to amrive af cxpected credit losses.

2) Marginal prebability of default: PD is defined as the probability of whether borrowers will default on their obligations in the tuture. PD
is derived from the external rating of the borrower by following steps:

1} To arrive at the PD, the annual default study published by rating agencies is relied upon. The default numbers published against
cach rating category in difterent studies arc then aggregated to arrive at internal PD matrix for each rating category

The PD numbers published arc on an annual scale and since the expasure of the instruments arc on monthly basis, the monthly
PD is then interpolated on 2 monthly basis by fitting the dats points from annuaj PD curve using cubic splines.

Finally, the Through the Cycle (TTC) PDs are converted to Point in Time (PIT) PDs using forward looking variables (GDP ctc)
using combinations of corrclation of underlying scctors assct quality and Pluto Tasche model.

The PDs derived from the methodology described above, are the cumulative PDs. stating that the borrower cun default in uny of
the given years, however (o compute the loss for any given year, these cumulative PDs have to be converted to 12 month
marginal PDs. Marginal PDs is probability that the obligor will default in a given year, conditional on it having survived till the
end of the previous year.

~
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b) Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD is an cstimatc of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifctime
LGD's are defined as a collection of LGD's estimates applicable to different future periods, Various approaches are available to compute the
LGD.

The Company has considered an LGD of 65% on unsecured exposures and 50% on secured exposures as recommended by the Foundation
Internal Ratings Based (FIRBY approach under Basel 1l guidelines issued by RBL.

Refer Note 40.8 to assess the impact of COVID-19

¢) Exposurc at Defoult (EAD): As per Ind AS 109, EAD is estimation of the extent to which the financial entity may be exposed to
counterparty in the event of default and at the time of counterparty's defaull. The Group has modelled EAD based on the contractual and
behavioural cask flows till the lifetime of the loans considering the expected prepayments

The Company has considered outstanding expected future cash flows (including interest cashflows) , SLCE for all the loans at DPD bucket
level for cach of the risk scgments, which was used for computation of FCT.. Morcover, the FAD comprised of principal component, accred
interest and also the future interest for the outstanding exposure. So discounting was done for computation of expected credit loss.

EAD is taken as the gross ¢xposure under a facility upon defaull of an obligor. The amortized principal and the interest acerued is considercd
as EAD for the purpose of ECL computation

The advances have been bifurcated into following threc stages:

Stage | - Advances with low credit risk and where there is no significant increase in credit risk. Hence, the advances up te 0 to 29 days are
classified as Stage 1.

Stage Il - Advances with significant increase in credit risk. [lence the advances from 30 to 89 days are classificd as Stage I1.

Stage [i] — Advances that have defaulted / Credit impaired advances. Hence the advances with 9(1 days past due or Restructured Advances are
classified as Stage 11 Another loun of the same botrower whether in Stage I ur Stage ILis alsv considesed as Stage I loan.

Nates- Days past due has been compnted after considering the RBI Circular dated March 27, 2020, for the aforesaid classification inta Stage I,
Stage Il and Stage 1l Loans.

The Company had provided moratorium on the payment of all principal amounts and/or interest, as applicable. falling due between March 1.
2020 and August 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers. The Company has recognised for interest on interest for the moraterium cases.

d) Discounting Fnctor: As per Ind AS 109, ECL is computed by estimzting the timing of the expected credit shortfalls associated with the
defaults and discounting them using effective interest rate which is obtained from the underlying yield (inclusive of processing fee) for each
instrument.

Additionally, the model also uses correlation matrix for deriving correlation in events of stress between different borrowers in same segment.
Correlation Matrix: This provides cornelation between diflerent entities/sectors which are present in the structure. When defaults are simulated
on the portfolio, these entilies in same or different sectors default together to the extent of strength of correlation. The correlation between two
enlities is derived as toltows:

« Inherently, the entire NBFC sector carries a bit of correlation in terms of liquidity risk- in even: of stress, we see the liquidity
vanishing from NBFC sector very quickly
» There is slight overlap between entitics operating in the sams sector- for example event like GST and demonetization did impact
all small business loans establishments, although to a varying exient
* For microfinance sector, since the loans are more homogenous, geopolitical, and social issues do tend to dominate majority of
stress events and hence peographically exclusivity will help
* Occupation profiles of the underlying borrowers served by entities
ECL computation: Conditional ECL at DPD pool level was computed with the foltowing method: Conditienal ECL for year (yt) = EAD (yt} *
condilional PD (y1) * LGD (y1) * discount factor (y1}
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40.4 Market Risk

Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result of changes in market variables such
as interest rates. exchange rates and other assct prices, The company’s exposure to market risk is a function of assct liability management
activities. The corapany is exposed (o interest rmte risk and liguidity risk.

The Company continuously monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate risk limits. The Asset Liability Management
Committce (ALCO) reviews market-related trends and risks and adopts various strategics related to asscts and liabilitics, in linc with the
company’s risk management framework. ALCO activities are in tum monitored and reviewed by a board sub-committee.

40.5 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people or systerns, or from external events.

The operational risks of thc company arc managed through comprehcensive internal contrel systems and pracedures and key backup processes.
In order to further strengthen the control framework and effectivencss. the company bus established risk control sell assessment at branches o
identify process lapses by way of exception reporting. This enables the management to evaluate key areas of operational risks and the process
to adequately mitigate them on an ongoing basis.

The company also undertakes Risk based audits on a regular basis across all business units / functions. While examining the effectivencss of
control tramework through selt-assessment, the risk-based audit would assure effective implementation of self-certification and internal
linancial controls adhereace, thereby. reducing

enleTprse exposure.

The company has put in place a robust Disaster Recovery (DR) plan, which is periodically tested. Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is further
put in place te ensure scamless continuity of operations including services to customers, when confronted with adverse events such as ratural
disasters, technological failures, human crrors, terrorism, ctc. Periodic testing is carried out to address gaps in the framework, if any. DR and
BCP audits are conducted on a periodical basis to provide assurance regarding the effectiveness of the company’s readiness.

0.6 1iquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeling obligations associated with financial liabilitics that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the company might be unable to
meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the tming of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the company on acceptable
terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified tunding sources and adopted a policy of availing tunding in line with the
tenor and repayment pattern of its reccivables and monitors future cash flows ond liquidity on a daily basis. The company bhas developed
intemal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expecied cash flows and the
availabilify of unencumbered receivables which could be used to securc funding by way of assignment if required. The company also has lines
of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.

Refer Note No 41 for the summary of maturity profile of undiscounted cashilows of the company's financial asscts and financial liabilitics as
at reporting period.

40,7 Interest Risk

Interast rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial
instruments. The core business of the company is providing loans to Institutional Finance. The Company borrows through various financial
instruments to finance its core lending activity. These activities exposc the company to inferest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is measured through carnings at risk from an camings perspective and through duration of equity from an economic value
perspective. Further, exposure to fluctuations in interest rales is also measured by way of gap analysis, providing a static view of the matwrity
and re-pricing characteristic of Balance sheet positions. An interest rate sensitivity gap report is prepared by classilving all rate sensitive assets
and rate sensitive liabilities into various time period categories according o contracted/behaviournl maturities or anticipated re-pricing date.
‘e difference in the amount of rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilitics matunng or being re-priced in any time period category, gives
an indication of the cxtent of exposure to the risk of potential changes in (he margins on new or re-priced assets and liabilities. The iaterest
rate risk is monitored through above mcasurcs on a quarterly basis. Substantially ali loans reprice frequently, with intcrest rates reflecting
current market pricing.

Ihe tollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates {all other variables being considered as
constant) of the Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity.
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As ot March 31, 2021

Cuvrency ]nc‘rcmc ! (du?rcase) Sensitivity of profit Sensitivity of equity
in basis pojnts or losy
25 Basis point Up 460.04 34425
. 50 Basis peint Up Iimpact on Profit 920.08 . 688.50
Lendings t on E
encings 25 Busis puint Down before Tax (460.04) Impact on Equity (3H.25)
50 Basis poiat Down (920.08) (688.50)
Currency lncrease‘/ (decrease) Sensitivity of profit or loss Sensitivity of equity
25 Basis point Up (325.15) (243.31)
. 50 Basis point Up Impact on Profit (650.30) . (486.62)
B ings E
OMFOWINES |35 Busis point Down before Tax 32505  [mpacton Equity 24331
S0 Basis point Down 650.30 486.62
As at March 31, 2020
Currency lnc'reasc / (det.:rease) Sensitivily of profit Senuitivity of equity
: in basis points or loss
25 Basis point Up 20472 153.20
o |50 Basis point Up Impact on Profil 409.45 . 306.39
Lendings 13 Fasis point Down befure Tax Qua.gz)|  ‘mpacton Equity (155.20)
50 Basis point Down (409.45) (306.39)
Increase / (decrease) o L. .
Currency : S Sensitivity of profit or loss Sensitivity of equity
in basis points
25 Basis point Up (191.39) (143.22)
. 50 Basis point Up Tmpact on Profit (382.79) I (2R6.44)
B g :
OmOWINES I35 Basis point Down before Tax 191.39 {mpaet on [Equity 143.22
50 Basis point Down 382.79 286.44

40.8 The impact assessment of COVID-19

The COVID -19 pandemic continues to spread across the globe and India, which hus contributed w a significant volatility in global und lndian
financial markets and a significant decrease in globaf and local sconomic activities. [he financial statements includes the potential impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s financial statements which are dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain,
including, among othcr things, any ncw information concerning the scverity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action te contain its spread
or mitigate its impact whether Government mandated or elccied by the Company and its subsequent impact on the recoverability’s on the
Company's assets.

Further, the Company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by the board, determined the provision for
impairment of financial assets. Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic impact, the Company’s management has considered
all information available upto the date of approval of these financial statements. Accordingly, the Company has made provision for expected
credit loss on financial asscts as at March 31, 2021 Based on the currert indicators of future cconomic conditions, the Company considers
this provision to be adequate and ¢xpects to recover the carrying amount of these financial asscts.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will further impact the Company's financial statement will depend on furure developments,
which are highly uncertaiu, including, wnong othier things, any new inforation concerning the sever ity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any
action to contain its spread or mitigate ifs impact whether povernment-mandated or clected by the Company. Given the uncertainty over the
potential macro-economic condition, the imipact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval
of these financial Statements and the Cempany will continue to closcly monitor any material changes to future cconomic conditions.
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Disclosures as per the Reserve Bank of India

Note 42. Scheduke to the Balance Sheet under Annez IV of Master Dircctlon - Non-Banldng Fi fal C y -Sy lcally Important Non-Deposit taking

and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particulars Amount Ou ding A Overdue

Liahilitics Side

421 Loans and advances availed by the non-bankiog A ial company inclusive of

interest accrued thereon but not psid :

a Debentures Secured 19,951.41 -
Unsecured - =

b. Deferred Credits - =

¢. Term loans {including overdrafl and cash credits) 96,364.64 -

d. Intercorporate loans and borrowings - =

e. Cammercial paper - -

f. Public deposits - =

£ Other louns -

42.2. Break-up of (1}[) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest

sceried thereon but not paid):

a. in the form of umsecured debentures - -

b. in the form of parily d deb 25 i 0. deb whorein thore is a shortfall in

the valuo of security

¢. other public Jeposits -

Asvet Side Amusunt Qutstanding

423 Braak-up of Loans and Advances includmg bills receivables [other thon those

included in (4) below] :

a. Secured 1.45.128.93

b. Unsecured 18,563.17

424, Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards
assel financing activities

3. Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

i) Finnnce lease

iii) Opcrating lcase

b. Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
1) Assets un hire

ii) Repossassed Assets

<. Other loans ing ds asset fmancing activities
i) Loans where assets have becn repossessed
i1) Loans other than (a) above

42.5 Rreak np af investments
Crerrgid Tnverrtmsenty
a. Quoted
i) - Equity shares

- Proference shaies
i1) Debentures and bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds
1v) Governmnent securities

v) others

b. Unquoted
i) - Equity shares
- Preference shares
ii) Debentures and bands
iii) Units of mutual funds
iv) Governument securilies
v) others (Alternative Invesunent Fuad)
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Assel Side

Amount Outstanding

Long term imvestmenty
a Quoted
i) - Bquity shares

- Proference shares
ii) Debenturvs and bonds
iii) Units of mutual fands
iv) Governnsent sscurities
w) others

b. Unquoted
i) - Equity shares
- Preference shares

i) Debentures and bords
jii) Units of nurtual funds
iv) Government securities
v) others

- Pass through securilies

- Alternative Investment Fund

42.6, Borrower group-wise classification of assets finnnced as in (3) and (4) nhove :

71,752,00

11,8835.29

8,847.55
913.01

Category

Amount net of provisions

Tuotal

Related pasties

a. Subsidiades

b. Companies in the same group
. Other relsted parties

Other than related parties

1,62,044.92

42.7. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current und long term) in shures nnd securities (buth guoted wnd unguoted) :

Category

Book Value (net of
provisioms)

Related parties

a, Subsidiaries

b, Companics in the samo group
c. Other relsted partios

Other than relatect parties

42.8. Other infor i

7,752.00

21,645.85

Particulars

Amount

a. Giross Non Performing Assets
- Related parties
- Other than relsted parties
b. Net Non Perfornting Assels
- Related parties
- Other than relsted parties
c Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Note 42a, Disclosures required in terms of Annexure XIV of the Master Direction - Non-B g

taldng and Depostt 1aking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

42a.1. Capital

lly Important Non-Deposit

Particalars

Current Year

Previous Year

CRAR %

CRAR - Tier [ Capial %

CRAR - Tier I Capital %

Amaount of subordinated debt raised as Tier [1 Capital
Amount raised by issue ol perpetual debt instrumenis

42a. 2, Investments

40.31%
39.71%
0.61%

64,48,
64.13%
0.35%

FParticulars

Current Year

Previous Year

o Value of investments

1) Gross value of investments
- In India
- Outside India

ii) Provision for dzprecintion
- In [udia
- Outside India

iii) Net value of investments
- In India
- Outside India

42a.3, Derivatives

The Company has no exposure in relation to these items in the current year and the previous year

29,397.85

29,397.85

10,087.03

10,087.05

42a 4. THeclosures relating to Seearitivati

Particalars

Amount

a. No of SPVs sponsared by the applicable NBFC for securitisation transactions
b. Tatal amount of sceuritiscd asscts as per books ofthe SPVs sponsored
¢. Total amount of exposures retained by the npplicable NBFC to compiy with MRR as
on the dale of balance sheet
1) Off batance sheet exposures
- irst loss
- Others
ii} On balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
d. Ammvunt uf exposuies o securilisalivn transactions vilier than MRR
There Company has not entered into any snch transactions dunng the cnrrent year

4204 (1). Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

There arc no such transactions of this nature in the current and previous year

42a.5, Asyet Linbility Mapupemeat Maturity puttern of certain {tems of Assets und Linbilities

2

5.248.33
73R.16

738.16

361.01

As st Murch 31,2021

Borrowing from Banks
and others (Refer
Note lii)

Particulars

Debt Securities

Advances

Investments

9.282.01
665.80
3,483.01
4,666.70
4.354.30
12,341.70
21,680.30
36.263.87
4,113.95

1107 days

2 to 14 days

Over 14 days to vue axnth
Over one month W 2 months
Over 2 months to 3 months
Over 3 Moaths up to 6 months
Over 6 Months up w | year
Ovuer | year up to 3 years
Over 3 years up to 3 years
Over 5 vears

274.15
1.062.90
1,519.50
3,672.40
521727

28,207.19

2,378.65
2,365.64

117.70

993.11
1.189.69
1,043.95
3.018.96
5,031,29
3,714.03
6,537.12
7.752.00

Total 96.864.64

39.953.41

1.62.044.72

29.397.85

Note ¢

i) Information on tho maturity pattem is based on the roasonablc assumptions made by the managemeat before considering impact of RBI Circular dated 27 March.

2020.
ii) Figures of Previous years are given in brackets
ings from Banks includ

iii} B

cash crodit and overdroit facility classified under upto 30 days maturity period which are generally availed as rollover facility.
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42a.6. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs

42a.13. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and othier regulators
There were no penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators in the current and previous year

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

) No. of accotints 10

b} Aggregate Value (net of provisicns) of sccotmis sold 844.95 .
¢ Aggregrate comserdauon 760.45 -
d) Additional cc lised in respect of accounts translerred :n earlier years - -
) Ageregrate gain/loss over net book vahie - =
42n.7. Details of non-performing financia! asets purchased / sold

‘There are na such transections of this namno in the current and previeus year

42a.8. Exposures

a. Exposure (o real esiate sector

[Particulars Current Year Previous Year

4. Direct Exposure

1) Residential Mortgages - -
Lending fully secured by wortgages on nesidential property that is or will be occupied by (he borower or that is

rented

1) Conunercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (oflice bulldmgs relml space. malli-piaepose

commarcinl premises, multi-family residential buildi mlti industrial o]

warchuouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development nnd construction, ete.). E\cposum shall also include non-

fumd based limits

it} Investments i Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures

- Residentizl - -
- Commercial Real Estate - -
b. Indirect Exposure

Fund aad non fimd based exposure 1o Housing Finance Companies 8.090.25 4.899.09
Total exposurc to real estate sector

b. Expnsure to ('apital Market

The Company does not have any capital market or derivative transaclions exposure as al March 31. 2021

42a.9. Dcetalls of financing of parcnt products

There arc oo such transactions of this natre in Ure current and previous year

42a.10, Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC

There are no such transactions ol this nawre in the current and previows year

42a.11. Unsecured Advances 18,488.91
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42214, Rating: igned by credit rating agencics and migrution of ratings during the veur

Particulurs Rating Agency

Current Year

Previous Year

RBank Term Loans ICRA
Non Convertible Debentures ICRA

A- (Suable)
A- (Stable)

A- (Swblc)
A- (Suble)

42a.15. Provisions and contingencios

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Peovisions for depreciation on Investvent
Provision | ds NPA including write off
Prowisina made towards Income tax

Chher Provision and Contingencies
Provision for Standord Assets

2241.54
1,481.97

748,21

49597
679.99
0.01
3513

Note- These are cherge to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

422 16. Draw Down from Reserves
‘Then: are no such transactions of this nature in the cument and previous year

42a.17. Concentration of Advances

Particalars

Amount

Total Advagces e wenty langest borowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable NBFC

49,640.64
3034%

422 18, Ci of Exposures

Particolars

Amount

Total Exposure 1o tacaty largest borrowers ¢ customers

Percentage of Fxposures 1o nwenty largest bermwars / customers to Total Fxposure of
the npplicable NBFC' oa borrowers / customers

53,945.73
29.17%)|

42a.19. Concentration of NPAs
‘Total Exposure (o top four NPA accounts (Gross exposure)

42a.20. Sector-wise NPAs

592.52

Sector

Asriculture & allisd activtics
MEMIE

Corporale borrawers

Services

Unsecured porsonal loans
Auto loans

Othier lnans

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that
_sector

180

42a.21 (T) Movement of NPAs

Purticulars

Current Year

Previous Year

o Net NPAs to Net Advances
b. Movement of NPAs (Gross)
- Opening balance
- Additions during the year
- Reductions during the year
- Closing balance
¢. Movement of Net NPAs
- Opening balance
- Additions during the year
- Reductions duing e yem
- Closing balance
. Movement of pravisions for NPas (excluding provisions on standard assets)
- Opening balance
- Additions during the year
- Reductions during the year

- Closing balance

0.000%

619.96

27.4
592.52

123.99

123.99

0.15%

619.96

619.96

123.99

123.99

495.97

495.97
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422.22, Disel of Ca plaiat

Particulars Current Year Provieis ¥ oeur

No, of compl pending af the t ¢ ol the year - -
No, af complaints recewved during (be year 124 95.00
No. of conplamts redressed during the yrin: 124 95,00
(Nuo. of eompl pending w the end of the year - -

423.23. Ovarsess Assats (for thoss with Jolat Veotnres and Subsidiatios sbroad)
‘There are no such transactions af this asture in the current snd previciis yesr

42424, Off-buluoce Sheet SPYs spunsured
There are o such lransactions of this natuse in the curenl wed previous year

Nate 43. Compurative figures
Provious pesiod flgsres have been regripsd sod reclassified wharever necessary to confirm cumrenryear’s presenmtion

For nud on lielwalf of the Board of Directors of \\« 3
Vit Capital Private Limited \ ¥
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Gauray Knmar Vineet Sukumar Shnik Mohstuted Irfan Bashs Amritha Paltenkar
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